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Greenwich & Bexley
_ Cammunity Hospice
TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The Board of Trustees present their report and the consolidated fingricial Statéments of-Gfeenwich & Bexley
Cornrpumty Hosplce Limited (GBGH) for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Thie financial statements.have been prepared ih accordance With thé Statement of Recommehded Practice
for Chariies (SORP 2015) ) (Second.Edition, effective 1 January 2019) applicable’ law and the. Chantys
governirig document. _

STRATEGIC REPORT
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES

The  Charity's public benefit as.setout in the objects clausg if its Articles of Assagiation is, for. the rellef of
pa/n and suffering. among the 1// ‘the prows:on managemen( and mamtenance of a hospice and assocrated
community and outreach services sfor- people with life-limiting lllness and their famijlies and friends,, the
profect/on and preservation of the health of those affected by bereavement and-the advancement of
education of professionals and the puiblic in the relief of pain and. suffenpg .

At Greenwich & Bexley Community Hospice, we believe that every person facing death should have the
best quality of life possible, experience dignity, peace and comfort and- Be supported to make the choices
that are right for them,.

Our organijsational purpose is to support and care for people facing death and'those close to them, their
families .and professional carers, acting ds a system, and community leader and connector, supporting
others and delivering expert care to achieve our vision. As we strengthen our relat;onshlps across the
community and health ‘and care “system, we will be generous with our skill and expertise to incredse the
profile of end of life issues and hospice care, improving access and.extending reach.

Our staff work within our own services and in partnership with-othéers fo help patients maintain-connections
with their community and maximise their quality of life, {We continué to be creative in our approach fo care,
relmagining support at home and for families, all the time respénding to diverse needs and the chaﬂenges
our patients and communlties face.

We actively listen and respond to everyone whe needs our care’ and attimes, this requires us to Iobby those
in power to ensure that the necessary resources are-available and that we can address barnnrslchallenges

We recognise that our people are our greatest asset we Fecruit, deVelop ;and retain the best people, creating
opportunities:and an edvironment for all of our staff so that they cah be themselves and pefform at their

best.
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Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice

Our Values

Respect and
professionalism
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Public Benefit )
The Trustees have paid due regard to the guidance provided by the Charity Commission on Public Benefit.
They are assured that the aims and objectives, along with the outcomes of the activities of the Charity have
met the Public Benefit requirement and acknowledge the generosity of its supporters who have enabled
the public to benefit from the Charity's activities. This Trustees report demonstrates how this was achieved. .



Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice

TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Our Strategy
- The last year has been full of challenges and triumphs; when we first entered the Coronavnrus Pandemic,
none of us expected it to last a year, let alone two; but unfortunately, it has been what has coloured much

of our lives in 2021/22 as wen as the previous year.

Across the hospiee, colleagues have learned to adapt to ensure that whatever their role they are still able
to deliver; whether that is in our income generation team, in our back offices and support functions.or in. our
frontline clinical services. Our multi-professional team has adapted their practise, testing themselves

regularly to keep our patients and their colleagues safe; becoming profi icient at communication, over video.

or behind a mask and adapting their knowledge and skills to respond to fresh challenges to ensure that we
maintain the best service we can for everyone who needs our care.

This virus has in some way impacted the lives and wellbeing of everyone in society, and at the hospice we
have not only had to respond to greater need in our community, but we've had to take even greater care-of
one another. Colleagues have themselves been impacted by the virus, many have lost loved ones
themselves or been very sick and some impacted by the protracted e_ffects of long COVID. Nonetheless,
those who were able have worked tirelessly to keep shifts covered and patients cared for.

Throughout 2021/22, we continued to use our Recovery and Transformation Programme (RTP) to set our
direction, ensure we maintained operations and to develop our hospice. The programme focused on seven
priority areas, identified and crystalhsed by the COVID-19 experience. v

1. Service Transformation 5. Retail and Commercial Development
2. Refreshing Volunteering 6. Fundraising Development
. 3. Staff Wellbeing and Development 7. Stakeholder Engagement

4. Equity, Diversity and Inclusion

The programme has helped us during a time of significant uncertainty and change to make progress '

towards achieving our vision, respond to opportunities and become more resilient to future threats. Through
the RTP, and working with Nesta and Julie Dodd, a digital transformation consultant, we were able to build
on what we've learned and begin to put the last two years behind us with our new strategy, approved by
the Board of Trustees in March 2022.

Some headlines from engagement conducted by Nesta on behalf of the hospice are outlinéd below:

We osked peopie to tell us how they feel about GBCH's care and support currentty from 1-10. and

heard from 239 people:
. .
i
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Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hosplce

TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)

Overdll opportunities for service
transformation

Looxing outwgrds

{ooKing itvwords

Partnerships and profite;
¢ Joke ofvstronger sfstem tecdersnp
role & strengthen oint- -vodanc
 Enhance infoimationshodng ond |

raferrols
* S profie to suppon recch
seMce delvefv and rundosng

Peopte as'the greatest osset: |
. Enhoncmgsto fond
vohunidary' cantibulion

» Recruifing and irdining stolf
to be at jhev bext

As well o5 feeding into semce fransiormation, these oppeoriunities drechy fnk fo other cross-cutting Recovery:
and Tronsformation pdodty ereas for GBCH:

& Storenoides engogemem(synem » Sfott wetheiig ana develdpment
leadetship ’ « Refreshing velunieedng
* « Fundioising development » Diversiy. equily ond inclusion
nesta
P-wm

Our new strategy outlines our priorities for the next five.years. We will continue. to ensure that our patients,
their fammes -and friends and the needs that they encounter through their journey from diagnosis through
to death and into bereavement remain at the heart ofall we do. Our skilled, compassionate and dédicated
team of staff and volunteers, who always strive for the best in all that they do, will be responsiblé for the
delivery of our strategy. Together we will work with’ local people and our partners to understand and meet
* the evolving needs of our communities, working together. to achieve the very best outcomes for patients.
The new strategy continues to take account of the.accelerated change and adaptation we have seen
through the challenges of 2020 and 2021 and seeks to build on what is positive about this change and
leave behind that which Is negative.

Our strategic priorities will help ensure that we utilise our resources as efficiently and effectively as possible
so that care and support is avallable where and when needed, delivered by the most appropriate person or
service. It also supports our aim to ensure that'we remain financially sustainable, so that we can continue
to provide care and support long into the future.

‘We recognise that.our. purpose will sometnmes require. us to take risks, to be courageous in advocating for
those whom are most in néed and. sometimes to. prioritise resources. We will contmue to be innovative in
our approach and focus on our priorities; this will help ensure that we achieve our vision of the best: quality
of life possible for people facing death in our community.

Qur three strategic priorities will ensure that we continué to look forward to be the very best we can be:

1. Listening to all voices in our commumty‘ understandlng thetr stofies ahd challenging
mequalltnes so that:we develop support, ‘which is responsive, compassionate and flexible. to.
‘meet differing and individual needs

ey 2.Growing and. empowering our own Staff, worklng to our strengths alongsnde systeny
¥ partners and developmg others to give the best support they can to dying people and their
families

3. Making the most of technology to assistus in delivering outstanding care, increasing reach,
~demonstrat|no tmpact and maximising income

Furthér information about our new strat’egy is available at www.communityhospice.org.uk
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GreenWICh & BeXIEy:
rCommumty HOSplce'

TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2022 (contmued)
OBJECTIVES AND ACTlVITlES (conﬂnued) :

Tne tab[e below: g‘rves .an overview of the progress, made agamst Uk Recovery and: Transronnatmn
"Programme ob;ectlves .

‘ Wod< stream =" ~

T"Progress

‘Serviee "
Ttansformation’

'

e 'Appomtment of New Dlrector of Care and Servrce Transfom'\atlon
» Reopened-ouf rehab gym: and began a hybrid model of ¢ servrce delivery

JIE2 lMappmg of local opportunlﬂes for focal Wellbemg support arready provnded

by partners
Commencerneqt of 1-1, wellbelng support provlded by Wellbemg Support

| worker

‘e Evaluation of ongomg Secondment of Physrotheraplsts to Oxleas= LUng
Health team
. Appomtment ofshared Occupanonal Theraplst post with St Chnstopher s
Hospice
Sessional CoUnsellors recruuted for re~modelled bereavement servlce
Contunuatlon of our mvolvement in system-wnde ‘Home First" model ,
mcludmg 7 day.Care Coordmatlon serfvice and further expansion of Social
"Work Team™
Evaluanon of HOSpltal Endof Life: D|scharge Coordmator role

Homes ECHO webmars

Appomtment of Board Safeguarding Champmn !

Completlon of work by Nestato lnform new strategy

Completlon of digital maturlty assessment and honzon scan of

‘opportunities to support serwce transformatlon

= Worked with CRASH chanty to commissidn options appraisal t6 inform
¢linical éstates Stratedy:

¢

..
.
.

Further development of Care Homes Team incitiding: lntroductlon of Caré

. Refreshmg
Volunteermg

Remtroduotnon of face to'face volunteering within hospice and commumty

. Contlnued growth of Compassuonate Nelghbours scheme
&+ Rectuitrent'tc new toles lncludlng for chkstart F’rogramme and
- reintroduction of Youhg Ward Voluntéers. ™

’ StaffWellbemg and.
Development

- Staff. wellbe:ng month tooK place in,partnership with St Christopher’s
Hosplce funded by SELCCG?

« Ongoing use of SE London Wellbelng portal and- contrlbutlon to.its

development

Wellbelng sessnohs ad hoc/ Vi external supporters

Ongomg trarruhg and development avallable for 3l staff

. Coatlnuatron of free eals for hosplce based slaff»

. HELP programme contmues lncludmg remtroductlon of faoe § ) faoe
‘tralning ,

Reé:Intréduction of SehwartzRounds . . . - .

' Equallty, Dlversny
| and'Inclusion -

IR Progress lowards lmplemenlatron of our E; D&l.vrs:on1 and actron plan.

lntroductron of new recrurtment procedures

'Further rallqut of Unconscrousb;as tralntng

Contmued engagement with SE London People board E, D&l work
Appomtment of Board E, D&l Champlon- )
Commiisiohéd’ METRO Charnty to review support for LGBTQ+ people
Establlspment of.new Shadow Workforce Commlﬁee

L

| 'oua_-' o'nnv u?s

: '.- Ongoing, Commumty DeVelopmentWorlc

RS The Hopice aims to "develop 3 Culture wmcn varues lts staffand palientsf Cllems and’ its Iocal commnnlty and to have a system in

place which proaotwely promotes inclusion and equalrty fgrall as well as: emb:acmg dnversrty. We zim to mtegrale Equahly, duversnty.
and mch)snon in everylhmg lhat We do, so.that it i i embedﬁed in our dally practlce

-
7
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Greehwnch & Bexley:
Community Hosp[ce

TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH zozz (continued]
.OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (conthed)

’ 'Retan] and » Completion of refail review fo advise future-structure and’ strat“egy
Commercial ‘e Refurbishment of 2 retail units
Development r» Gommissiohed Boxsmave for hospice retail logistics

i New Head of Retagl ji role
« Establishéd’ a Trading Board and Tecruited a flew Tradmg Non: Executuve

Director
- Fundraising I 'Investment in fundraising to grow income, particularly mdw‘rdual glvmg,
' Development lottery.and commumty fundraising
"« - Reintroduction of sofme face 1o face fundrarsmg everits-and continuation
of Virtual

1 Gommenced pro;eci to replace our currént Finance Systern

|.» Z\ppomtment of new. Database Manager anid agreement to invest.in Aéw

Customer Reiatronshtp Management System (CRM)

Appointment of 3 F undrarsmg ‘Trustee Cﬁamplon

Regu]ar time to{alk’ meetmgs embedded across the organisation

Appomtment of new Markeling and Communlcations Manager dnd. revrew

of regufar.communications; including further development of électronic-
commumcatrons Recruutmeni of Héad of Commumcatuons and Markeimg

¢ Further development of.brand arid review of patient information Tesources

| = Appaintment of & COmmunrcatfons and Marketrng Trustee Champion

‘Stakencjger -
Engagerpent

% 18 L%

‘During the height ,of the pandem\c we {made some changes fo.our .govérnance S$tructure o, ‘ensure
continued -board oversight and assurance as well as to provide support 10 the Chief Executive and her
senior !eadershrp ‘team. We have riow revrewed the structure for ‘business a's usual and will contirige fo
"implement our planned changes’ throyghout 2021/22 '

Hospice Services

Greenwich & Bexley Community Hosprce offers a number of services. based within and working from our
main. Hospnce building. We wefe last mSpected bythe Care Qualrty Commlssron in 2016, when we achleVed
“an overall rating of * Good’ and a fating of ‘Qutstandlng in the responsn/eness dornain.

Servrces in the HOSpice bulldmg
- Our. inpatient unit, cafing for and supporting pegple who have symptom:control -needs;- complex
psychological support needs, fespite needs orend of life care needs ‘The téam-also provide: srgniflcaat
su‘pport to. thefamlhesand friends of those Who we. care for.

- Oup oufpatrent -Séfvices support peopfe Who remam at home But are: able to travelto the hosplce for
rehabgl(tahon ambulatory treatments and’ oUtpatrem revrew as well as’ cOmp!ementary and ‘creative
“thetapies.

- Qur rehabihtatron teany work ~with patrents in all Hospice servrces ‘to. mainfam of :develop
mdependence and develop strategles to: manage symptoms stich as fatlgue arid breathlessness

- Our bereavement and counsellmg service gives emoﬂonal supporf and counselung to ‘people with
~advanced rllness and theu:famllles and frrequ before andaﬁer bereavement faceto face mdrwdually‘
in groups and over the: teleph,one

- The Hosprces chaplamcy servrce,prowdes spiritual. suppott fo, patients across all settmgs when
‘requested:

Sétvices' in-the Hospatal .

" The Hosp;ce Tear at: Queeén Ehzabefh Hospntal Woolwich train’s dnd advises hospital staff op ends
of life care’and symptorn controt lssues. as weli as stpporting patrents and their famjliés dlrectly‘ help)ng
“to-ensure that their wishes for care are friet-and. sulsporﬂng patrents to be discharged hame, or'to.a
care home or the Hospice where this is-appropyiate. This'service opetates seven day&a week.,
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Greenwrc;h & pexley
C’ommumty Hos;nce

TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR ﬂ' HE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (contmtjed)n
»OBJECTIVES AND ACHIEVEM!_EN‘[ S (contmued),

: Setvuces 'if the' Commfumffr - -
: The hosp]ce s Commumty Servrces prowde specrahst palllatlve gére. across Greenwrch and Bexley
Eoroughs Clmrcal Nurse Specrallsts Doctors and Allled Health Professronals vrsrt people intheir. own..
;homes Nie care homes and i m the local pnsons giving, holrstlc care, -advrce and’ support to them. and,’
their network of rnformal support as well as o the other. communrty staff (GPs Dlstnct Nur’s°és etc.)’
rnvol\led in thelr care ln .Greenwlch wee also prowde a rfully 1 rntegrated carer coordrnatron 9
hosprce@hon’;e and nursmg serwce prowdrng practtcal and personalcare around the clock in patlent’
.own homes

a week as weII as provldmg on call advroe around the  clock, In' Greenwrch we also provIde nrght srttmg '
and a nlghttrme raprd—respogse serv;ce provrded through a contract wlth Mane Gurle and Oxteas NHS .
FOUndatJon TFrust®
."The Hospice Social Workers work. wrth patrents tg;access benefi ts and grants as well &5 to.fry to
"reso[ve housrng issues and get help with complex chrldren and fam‘ly needs or. safeguardrng concerns
- Our network of cornmumty votunteers mcreasrngly also’ suoports people in"their own homes‘ and
frnctudes volunteers who provrde compassron companronshlp and practrcal support, these volunteers,
;are, called Compassnonate Nelghbours

Iy

rrrrr

- Throtrgn our rnvotvement m the Hosplce Educatron and Learmng Partnershlp (HELP), our team‘
provrdes bespok“e and:; programmed tramlng to' nurses doctors, and other health and soclal care
professronals as well:as prowdrng support and faorlrtatron to statf patrents and. families’in care homes. .
HELP Is«a partnersh;p between"our own hosplce and St Chnstopher’s Hosplce

OneBexley.

- tn!2020/21 we were” awarded a contract! by London Borough of Bexley for provrde assessment and
revrew of socral caré needs/for adults and thelr carers: across the borough Thrs contract whlch is the
rﬁrst of its; krnd is detwered by. the hosprce as" prime contractor wath a partnershrp of seven other local
¢ chantles As the servrce de\/etops we hc:pe that it will help us engage  with people earlper in therr d rsease
13s. well ‘as SUprrtmg more carers who are lookmg fter. loved ‘ones facmg the end of therr lrves. Due
to the success of, the short—tem pllot whlch ‘demonstrated ‘bétter outcomes and rnore personalrsed' .
care we have been awarded a three-year contract

Progress on HOSplce Strategy ahd Pnormes fo‘r lmpro\lement dunng the Coronawrue Pandemrc_

Desptte the challenges that conhnued because of the Coronavrrus Pandernfc sour Hosprce achreVed a huge
.amount m 2021/22 Much of what We. achreVed focuaed on’ us mamtalnmg buslness contl ty,throthbout
our, seryrces as opposed to exphcrtly about meetrng our strateglc pnonﬂes but where the srtuatron presented
challenges ‘We vreWed 1hem as OpportUnrtles to lmprove and:in domg so were able to achreve a nUmber of:
»strategfc goals )

_By_slneSs Cotinuity and lnt’eétton Prevehtron - :

‘We were able to'continue to protect our- mrssron cntrcal' sennces and support more people than evenbefore~
OUr hosprce—wrde pandemlcplanmng grctrp contmtJed to meet regutany, toT respond to new leglslatron and
’ gurdance, this:has now. become & fegilar, grr)up whict’ meets to. drscu’ss operatronal challenges- ag§ they
-anse. The outcome ‘of .our QOVernance rewew contmued 1o be rmplemented ‘moving ta; br-mo vv_ty board-
fmeettngs and our nevaorkForce Commrttee was’ estabhshed fin snadow form. Operatronat'managersr
conthed to focus on' mamtarnrng our;servrce and" supportrng staff and, contrnued to assure‘the Board:;
raround our fina nclal stabrllty workforce wellbeing and resilience,’ resporise tothe pandemrc and qualrty and
xsafety of our*servlces Our Chalr‘ and Chref EXecutwe contmtlec[ wrth their weekly,meetmgs and harsed wtth
vother‘Board.members as necessary, we: "have’ 1revrewed OUr deputrsrng structure for' board rrLembers to

ensure bUSmess oontlnurty for‘govemance and 8ssurance

g the early part of the- year We contmu’ed fo! feduce face~to-face contact betWeen staff and t)etween staff:
rapd’ patrents.where tis was appropnate. Many patients" reémain reluctant‘to'have horne visits; and for some’
‘ staff ‘wark’l life! bal’ance had been enhanced by workrng frorn home so bybnd worklng has remarned rn pface
"whete’ appropnate/ possrbte



Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice

TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
OBJECTIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS (continued)

Our Registered Manager/ Infection Prevention Lead led on all aspects of infection risk management with
support from the pandemic planning group, our HR department and Estates Team. As the benefit of wide
scale vaccination began to enable restrictions to be lifted in wider society, we were able to bring more staff,
outpatients and visitors were welcomed back into the building, however we continue to maintain strict
controls with mask wearing, social distancing and regular lateral flow device testing for hospice based/
clinical staff. We were pleased to be able to welcome our inpatient team back into the rest of the hospice
as we opened the inpatient unit front doors once more. We remain diligent with barrier nursing for new
inpatient admissions and patients suspected with COVID and we have had no COVID outbreaks in the
hospice in the year because of our continued caution.

Partnership working

We remain grateful to our own staff who showed flexibility working in other areas of the hospice at times of
peak demand/ staffing difficulty. In particular, our physiotherapists continue to be seconded on a part time
basis to the respiratory team at Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust, working in the team to support patients who
could benefit from a palliative approach.

Our partnership approach continued throughout the year with regular participation in the Greenwich and
Bexley ‘System' wide group ‘Resplendent’. Through this group, we have proactively participated in problem
solving across organisations, as well as getting support when the Hospice needs it from partners. We
accessed winter funding once more which enabled us to invest in our community services.

Our Greenwich and Bexley End of Life group convened at the beginning of the pandemic now continues as
a system wide group, chaired by our Director of Care and Setvice Transformation. The plans for this group
link with the SE London Integrated Care System Palliative and End of Life Caré Network which is lead by
our Chief Executive and supported by a Project Manager seconded from the hospice.

We maintained our partnership with St Christopher’s, including a joint Occupational Therapist post; however
the Senior Medical support to our inpatient unit and collaboration on our second on call rota ceased due to
changes in their medical staffing. An independent Medical Consultant supports the team instead and are
working with Supportive Care UK to help sustain our second on call rota. Our Hospice Education and
Learning Partnership continued to deliver face to face and virtual learning to colleagues across the NHS
- and independent care home sector, embedding virtual meetings called Project ECHO with our local care
homes. We were sorry to-see the joint Chief Executives from St Christopher’s moving on to new roles at
the end of the year-and hope that our collaboration will continue under the new leadership.

Staff Weilbeing
The cumulative impact of two extremely dlff cult years hasbeen significant across our whole staff team.

Changes to practice with less face to face interaction and less opportunity for informal support, long hours
and the reality and fear of COVID impacting on staffing levels and the health of ourselves and our loved
ones, means that we all bear the scars of the pandemic. The unrelenting nature of these challenges has
made it difficult to maintain morale at times. Our very special hospice team have supported one another to
get through this last year and together we havé achieved so much under tremendous adversity, the board
are incredibly grateful for the continued commitment and dedication shown by every member of staff.

The conflict in Ukraine and the cost of living crisis has also added additional worry and pressure for people
across the whole of _sociéty‘ our staff are no different and so we will continue to be mindful of both these
issues in our wellbeing support.

We maintained regular ‘time to talk' sessions.for colleagues to share worries and anxieties as well as good
news. We also held a staff wellbéing month in partnership with St Christopher's Hospice in'‘May. The month
included pamper days, wellbeing checks as well as a programme of virtual heaith and wellbeing focused
sessions. The funding received from SE London Integrated Care System for the month also funded
refurbishment of our staff ‘wobble room* and the ladies’ changing rooms. We were pleased to be able to
reinfroduce Schwartz rounds, which we also opened up to, colleagues from Oxleas NHS Fouridation Trust
and were évaluated well. Staff began to use our ‘Speak Up' platform Work In Confidence, albeit in small
numbers, and continued to access Clinical Supervision, our Employee Assistance Programme and the
South East London Wellbeing portal.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
OBJECTIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS (continued)

We're planning & review of Clinical Supervision in 2022/23 which will inform our strategy to support clinical
staff, we're also plarining a hospice-wide staff survey at the beginning of 2022/23 and willuse the findings
of this ta inform our People Strategy. We'll also continue to link with our staff wellbeing group formed as
part of the RTP, to develop more wellbeing initiatives.

“‘What was best for me was the wellbeing check, which thankfully | have followed up with my GP. If | didn't
do this | don't think [ would have spoken to my-GP and now receiving freatment. So very well done'

‘Thank yot for putting these sessions on - it was really good to take some time to do mindfulness or to gef
a massage, as this is not something | would do regularly. It would be great to seg initiatives like this
spread across the year to éncourage staff to remember o prioritise their own health and wellbeing.
Thanks again, great idea!’

' ' Feedback from staff following our joint hospice wellbeing month

It's nice fo be able to connect with volleagues that we wouldn't normally see. Havipg an insight into each
other's working lives is interesting and often very impactful.'
Feedback from staff member following a Schwartz round

Investment in information Technology

Following the significant investment in IT in the previous year, we continued our network upgrade and
moved our server infrastructure into the *cloud’. We also commenced a project to mave our finance system
onto a new platform, the project will complete in the autumn of 2022, ciosely followed by a planned upgrade
to a new Customer Relationship Management System. )

Financiat Sustainability ,
Although budgeting and income from our usual sotirces of income were still impacted by the pandemic, we
faced immense uncertainty and so we adapted and developed ouir plans accordingly. Detail on retail and
fundraising income is provided later in this report. We were extremely gratefiil for the continuation of the
Hospice grant from NHS England, which gave us an ability to plan and develop in response to increased
need.
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Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice
TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
OBJECTIVES AND ACHIEVEMENTS (continued)

CARE ACTIVITY.

 April 20212022

2,043 being newly referred w:thm financ:al year: and €75
‘ongoing' patients having been reforred prior tothe start ofthe‘
‘fmanc:ai year. People usua‘lty Tecaive support from more than
one hospice service, so the number of individual referrals’is
greater than the number.of people we supported.

Hospice Based Services

Inpatient Care

In 2021/22 we provided care for 295 pat:ents w1thm Woodlands, our Inpatient Unit (257 in 2020/21). Despite
this, occupancy remained at only 63% (2020/21 63%) because our average length of stay reduced from 13
days to 10 days, as many patients-chose to remain at home surrounded by family, rather than attending
the hospnce which had réstrictions on visitors for parts of the year. Patients are referred for inpatient care:
for pain and symptom control, terminal care, complex. psychological support and respite care. ’

For some patients their symptoms: become hard to manage and require-specialist assessment support and
treatment. These patients will stay with us to enable the multi- d|sc:|plmary team to assess their condition
and if necessary, modify their medication in order to relieve pain and other symptoms, before discharge
back horme. Thére was a slight increase in patierits being discharged at the end of their stay with 28% of
patients who stayed in the Hospice in 2021/22 being dlscharged home (2020/21 26%). Some people whose
iliness has reached the final stages choose to come to the hospice for terminal care: these patients are
offered compassionate nursing and medical care so they can achieve the best quality of life during their
final da‘ys‘;

The direct €ost of prowdlng care in the Inpatient Unit in 2021/22 was £1,439,814 (2020/21 £1 445 J115),
costs remained flat mamly duetd a high vacancy rate in our inpatient-team.

Outpatient Sér'v’icés

Rehablhtatlon-

The Hospice rehabilitation team, comprising 2 Physaotheraplsts and an Occupatlonal Theraplst work with'
our nurses and ‘doctors to enhance the skills-of the multi-disciplinary team and encourage a rehabilitative
approach across-all of our sefvices, Our team continued to develop this service, embedding a rehabilitative:
approach thrOUQhout all.areas of the Hospicé and workung with a smiall numberof rehabilitation volunteers
who'support their work. .

The team worked in the inpatient.unit; our rehabilitation gym and virtually to support patients with a small
amount of homevisiting taking place, ‘mainly by our Occupational Therapist: Our physnotherapcsts contmued
to be seconded to'the Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust lung health: team-on a part—tlme basis and followmg
positive evaluation we are now seeklng funding to continue and .expand this service. IN total the team
stipported 201 hew patients in the year, compared to 116'in.2020/21.

Our Wellbelng Support Worker spent time with individual patients as well as mappingservices prowded by
others in our community. She is now in the process of developing a number of opportumttes for virtual and
face-to-face wellbeing groups and these will increase when we appolnt to a new Allied Health Professionalf
Welibeing Lead post; planned for 2022/23
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR TH’E YEAR ‘ENDED 3% MARCH 2022 (contmued)
4 OBJECTIVES AND ACH}EVEMENTS (contmued)

-#Case'Stiidy:

After.a stay int hospltal Tracy chose to spend her@nal weeksin our rnpatlent umt She was unsure what fo .
expect as'she, was unaware of t_he hosplce and the: support and care'avaitable. llnmally she had found it a,.
-little Scary, but was - quickly. put at ease’ by the: compassnon shown'to her\by the team Who: looked after: her
.and the bonds that qurckly formed Yshe recalled that'on her second: -day,- Nurse Lou;se had painted her ngils.
and later Washed her hair. an,d how happy and llfted that had made her feel

Tracy was amazed: by the level of the ,personaltsed afid compassiondte care’that.stie recelved and the

posrtn/e 1mpact that' had of het and Rer visiting” fatnrly, and she. wanted to shout about the great work that

the’ hosprce is doing 117 thE‘commUnlty-"Many years ago when you'd say the. word ‘hosplce"you dr thmk_
actually its end.of. ]lfe care, .but it's so- [nuch more_-They are doing so much 7 more for, me, it's, not all about
Just one “thing and they've got H the fadilities to help you llve your' life'the- way. you need:to lrve it. no matter

How. long you ve got to liveit.”

Socrai Psychologlcal and Spmtuat Care

The Hosprce endeavours to” meet all ‘the: needs of lfs patlents whether they :are physlcal emotlonal or
spmtual Odr. sc>cral workers, bereavement support tearm, chaplaln and Voliinteers help other ynembers of-
the team to ensure that we meet the holsstrc needs of. patlents and their farnllles a‘nd fnends

The need for- social work support contrntred to’ lncrease in: 2021/22 - supporting 112 new patrents thrs'year
(114 in 2020/21) with-a vanety ‘ofii iSsues mcludrng complex famlly work, safeguardmg rssues housing;
benefits and asylim Issiies. We weré “successfil In. ounplans ta' expand our Social Work service in the year,’
iwhich helped to meet this chalienging: workload We hope that in 2022/23 we will bé able to expand our pre
and post-bereaVement SUpportfor ch»ldren as we continue to sée more parents of chlldren as. chlldren'

Durmg the COUrse of this'year, we contnnded to offer one to ong counselling support vrrtually via teIephone
and video. We. offer counselling:to. patlents ~relatives.and carers, before and, followrng bereavement for
relattves Where appropnate ‘We_pass on. referrals to other: partners through our newly establrshed
.Greéenwich & Bexley Bereavement HelpRoint.- In total. rn 2021/22. our counselling servrce supported 503
people,’ prowded by paid and volunteer. sessional counsellors as well'as our BereaVement Coordmator
Practrce Development

‘We continued-to work through HELP the Hospice. Educétion and Learning Partrership in coltaboration with
st Chnstopher S Hosplce By workmg together, we reached more local health and care, staff enabling them
‘to support more people to achreve their. goal of. dymg inthelrown homeor. care home focusmg oh promotmg‘
holistic’ care, -djgnity,. independence and, choice atethe’ end of life-as well as developmg symptom
management ‘and, communrcahon skills,

'Communrty Based Serwces

The Hosprce offers 24 hour care and. support |n the commumty across the Londorr Boroughs of Greenwich
.and Bexley: (n 202122 our speclallst palluatlve care communrty team supported 1,489 new pat:ents (1 331
Jn 2020/21’ a 12% -lncrease), 196'of these patients were supported at'some. pomt durmg them journey, vja:
‘our telephone support service (263 in 2020/21) Of the-. 4 546 peoplé who died under the care of the hosplce'
(all services), 69% were abfe t die out of hospltal (67% in 2020/21).. K

Whrlst there was' a slrght reduction i m patrents with & cancer, dragnosls (reductron of 58 or: 4%, followcng a

's@nlﬁcant rncrease‘ in, 2020/21), thé ‘most notable. growth in actrvrty was in people expenenomg frallty/ old
.age and those with resprratory conditionis. The team supported an addltronal 50 people expenenérng frarlty/
old, age i 2021/ /22 an ifcréase 6f.100% and 49 people Witha resplratory Cofidition, anincrease of 20%.’

“The. direct cost of Specrallst Commumty Care in 1202 1/22 was £959 017 (2020/21 £649 956} challenges in’
;recrdttment and ,vacancues were responSIble‘for Scosts «remarmng re}atwely flat sOur commdnity team
-continuéd to.use technology to'assist them1n them ejlmcal practlce .progechng shielded patlents as well as,
‘freemg up valyzble travelllng fimé: .
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

The Hospice@Home service continues to deliver an important element of Hospice community activity, led
by the Hospice and delivered in partnership with Marie Curie and Oxleas NHS Foundation Trust. The total
cost of the care provided by the Greenwich Care Partnership in 2021/22 was £772,546 (2020/21 £724,457).
Throughout 2020/21 our team took a leading role in managing the discharge process for those facing end
of life in Queen Elizabeth Hospital and we were delighted to be able to support Bexley residents as well as
those we normally support in Greenwich through our Hospice@Home team, the increased costs mainly
relate to these additional services. In 2021/22 the Hospice@Home team supported a total of 250 new
patients (275 in 2020/21).

Case Study:

The Community téam are currently supporting a young man of 26 years old who lives with his mum and
young sister, He was diagnosed with a rare brain tumour when he was 18 years old, just as he was ready
to start university. Despite life changing immeasurably for him, he went onto graduate from university, set
up a social enterprise to educate and support people affected by cancer and brain tumours, particularly
those in Black and Minority Ethnic communities and he started a company which sells merchandise to
support the social enterprise — Rare & Loved.

Since then, he has undergone a number of surgeriés and treatments, each having some residual effect on
him in some way. The team have been involved since Summer 2020 with practical issues such as benefits,
securing a family break, advocacy, symptom management, emotional support and referring his younger
sister to Young Carers. The disease has progressed further and there are no further treatment options, we
continue to support the patient and family on this difficult journey. The patient has recently had a book
published, detailing the challenges that he has encountered and how he has coped with them.

Hospice Outreach in Hospital )

Our hospital support team based at Queen Elizabeth Hospital, Woolwich, plays an important role in
educating and advising hospital professionals as well as supporting patients and their families in hospital.
This year our small team made visits to 941 patients over 1075 referrals (918 patients and 1062 in 2020/21
2% increase). This demonstrates sustained growth following investment in the team the previous year. The
direct cost of Hospice Care in the Hospital in 2021/22 was £383,568 (2020/21 £345,008).

Case Study:

It's always good to apply our hospice approach to care in the hospital setting; the hospice’s hospital support
team recently cared for a patient who was approaching the end of her life who had complex care needs
most suitably catered for in a hospital environment. After struggling with this reality, the team had emotional
and honest conversations with her about where she would preferred to end her days, and having discussed
that a hospice stay was not going to be possible, they ascertained that what was most important to her.
She wanted her husband to be able to stay with her and to spend time outside, seeing the hirds, the
greenery and the blue sky. The hospital team leader and senior doctor took time out of their rounds to-take
her in a wheelchair-away from the busy hospital ward into the fresh air where she could see the trees and
sky outside the hospital. The team leader later commented 'It was a most honourable and beautiful moment
that we were ablc to share with the patient and her husband- the patient who could not verbally
communicate shed tears and smiled - the husband was so grateful.... it was one of the most beautiful
moments of end of life care in my experience and one both myself and colleagues will remember forever.'

OneBexley Consortium

One B’exley;is a consortium of eight chatities who have agreed to work together for mutual benefit as well
as to improve the lives of Bexley citizens. The consortium includes the Hospice, Bexley Voluntary Services
Council, Age UK Bexley, Inspire Community Trust, MIND in Bexley, Carers' Support Bexley, SE London
Crossroads Care and Bexiey Méncap.

In April 2020, OneBexley was awarded a contract to deliver and transform the way that adult social care is
delivered. The consortium is working with the council and partners to ensure that the most vulnerable
people in Bexley get the right kind of care and support.
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"TRUSTEES’ REPORT. EOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2022 (contiftied)
‘ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

-d: Have care'and suppbrt that enables thern to hveas they WQnt tor . ‘

‘b Bé iti control of planning théir owi. cafe and support with addrtrona[ help: as Téquired by those wha-
know and- care about them I
¢'Have ‘needs met. effectr\/ely, efficiently and quickly

d. Eacrhtate proactrve and preventatrve care support: tathér than reactrve dnd.crisis’ care2

" “Through the.contract; we are diriing for-people.fo:

Greenwich & Bexley Commumty Hospice is the primie contractqr forthe @neBexley Pathways Contract and-
out-Chief. Execiitive chatrs the One Bex[ey Programme 1803fd Through ‘this mechanism the Hosplce is
~wor}<mg to extend reach,rburld and utmse community assets and dehver Value fOrmoney and qualrty benef ts -
‘to'the Hqsprce the wider system and the Beiley population.

% Followmg the.success of the pllot»phase ‘wevere: pleased to’bé able to. secureaJ new- three-year contracf ’
“for: OneBexley in March 2022

'REACHING ALL:OF OUR COMMUNITY

S’Care beyend Cancer
The Hosprce continues to strive.to reach peeple wlth g dragnosrs other! than canoer, ‘wha natronally arg’

.oftery less likely’ to, be referred: and to accéss suppott from specralrst palliaﬁve care $érvices:

AR prevrous years “We have only réportéd on one pnmary dragnosns for each patnent ‘However Many. of our
~patrer;ts favé complex: needs and.more than one significant: dragn05|s Referrals between April ; 2021 and
March 2022 included 125 people refefred to our counsellifig/social work. Service only ‘We-have excluded
these clrents for the purposes of dlagnoss reportmg, as many of 'rhese will\be carers: or bereaved family

nnnnn

The’ﬁfépértiioh of pa'trejnts -‘w‘itha‘e‘ahcer,fdi\agng‘srs- was 52?3/5,-,

Servmg People of All. Ages
The -Hospice. proVrdes care taanyone Wrth a life limiting rllness hvmg il the London Boroughs of Greenwich

of Bexle‘y Who IS C \/"er the age of 183 The majonty of, people wé caré for are over 65.1ny 2021/22 65% of
the people-we caréd for were overys (2020/21 62%) and 36% were over 85 (2020421, 33%)

A$ prédicted, we arg seeing the rieed for care forthe "older old”. increasing and we. expect this-trend to-
'contane OVer the next 10—20 years Thls |s aiready havmg an lmpact on the type of care‘we provide -as
also Be more ﬁkely’ fo'live Ina semng such as a care’ home or supported housrng sch‘efr"i’e In addmon older'
people are.more. Ifkely to have mult] yle condifions, rncludrng dementia, and therefore Jive: with lncreasrng
levels offrallty anid with more complex neerWe continued to invest’in ourwofk in Care-horfies.in 2021/22'
-and Wl“ centmue to develap this. sthport ds part-of the néw’ strategy.

2 T’aléen ﬁ:om IDBB pathwaYS COntract service specrﬁcatxon (2 0205 .
:3 Addmonaﬂy‘ chﬁdren and yeung geogle who are famijly members orcrose friends oftﬁo§e we: mrefqr, teceive supborf frong staff.
parﬁcurar[y psychologrcal sﬂppon and socrai work: serwcés
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

Patient Diagnosis
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR: ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (contmued)
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

Cultural Diversity
' The Hospice continues.to focus on. ensurmg that all groups in our community are aware of our: Seérvices and.
'to.break down the barriers to.accessing our care and support. As part of this: strategy, we spend timve with,
community leaders and groups listening to them about their needs and talkmg about-the Hospice-to- try. to
dispel any myths that may discourage people from.accessing our services: when-they need them: At the:
end of 2019/20 we received-a grant from the National Lottéry to help us accelerate this: work however the
pandemic forced us to- scale back our pians to focus on. maintaining business continuity.

Ty

-monitoring (838 or 29% of patients in 2020/21

Although wé have made some ‘progress: with. our -ethi
21122 this issue. remamed for 675 peéople 6r25%

did not have their- ethmc.lty recorded) dlsappomtmgly i o
For: the,remamlng patients for whom: ethn;cnty Wi ed there was a larger number of’ péople in the.
non-thie British group (27% year on.year mcrease) whereas the Wh:te Brmsh group stayed the sarhe. We.
saw the, largest growth iri the ‘Black or Black British”and "Other’ categorles : ,

We.continue-have a clear focus on data quahfy in-all areas, but are partlcularly focussing on thls area as
_ part of our Equality, D|ver51ty and Inclusion Work which will be monitored through the- Quality and Safety

Committee.

Cultural Heritage.

. &s‘,.\ o Asfar Sritish ((ndian, ?=u<:au| C)"JP&,
ae‘ 13deshi, Othar &sizn) '

2122k o7 Slack Sridsh (Afvican, Carfbbean, Other
-la:k Sackground)

® Mixad [Whéze/i&ack'(adbteer-,\\'h}ze}'ilack
#fricen, Whitefasian, Giher)

v Othar

2 h’h.:e SriGsh

& Whits Ozhdr (White irishMize Othér)
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ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

INCIDENT MANAGEMENT/ HEALTH & SAFETY

Reporting of clinical incidents is embedded into the routine business of the Hospice Quality & Safety
Committee through the clinical dashboard.

Our medicines incident rate was 56 for the whole year (74 2020/21) a further reduction on the previous year
and a welcome downward trend. We were able to use Hospice UK’s national annual benchmarking audit
to compare ourselves against similar hospices; incidents are graded level 0-6 with O being least severe,
our efrors ranged from level 0 to level 2, also an improvement on the previous year. Our rate of “level 0"
(error prevented) drug errors at Greenwich & Bexley Community Hospice is-higher than the average for
. Hospices of a similar size (45% at GBCH, 29% National average per annumy),however the overall number
of incidents reported is hngher which we strongly believe is due to the low threshold we have for reporting
concerns, no matter how minor. We had no repeated incidents of concern and nursing staff undertake a
regular medication assessment to assure the organisation of their competency.

Through the National audit programme, we are also able to benchmark our performance in terms of the
incidence of falls. We reported a lower than ayerage figure for falls of 8.2 per 1,000 overnight bed days
(Audit average 9.9), we also reduced our overall rate by 50% from 16.7 in 2020/21. 96% of falls were in the
no harm/ low harm category, sadly the remaining 1 fall was recorded as severe harm, this related to a
gentleman who had sustained a suspected hip fracture whilst trying to.mobilise independently. He and his -
family decided that he did not wish to attend hospital for treatment, but to remain at the hospice for comfort
care alone.

We received 17 care and 16 non-care complaints in 2021/22 (2020/21, 15 care,; 15 non-care complaints),
all complaints were fully investigated, whether they are informal complaints such as direct feedback
or comments received on patient and family feedback questionnaires or formal written complaints.

An investigation is catried-out for all complaints and where possible the complainant is invited to meet with
members of the senior team to discuss their concerns and the outcome of any investigation. Complaints
are seen as an opportunity to learn and improve and findings are shared widely with our own team, and
partners where applicable.

We review the Hospice's operational risk register as a standing item at the Quality & Safety Committee and
issues are escalated to the Board if appropriate. In 2021/22 the register mainly featured matters: relatlng to
staffing, IT and COVID-18.

Serious Incidents

The Hospice Board receives a report from the. Chief Executive at-every Board meeting which confirms
whether there have been any serious incidents that should be notified to the Charity Commission and/or
Care Quality Commission. We reported one incident to the Charity Commission as a precautionary measure
in 2020/21; they confirmed that no further action was required.

Further information about incidents and complaints is available in-our 2021/22 Quality Account.
PATIENT AND FAMILY FEEDBACK

The Charity receives hundreds of thank you cards and letters from patients and bereaved families each
‘year, in addition, there are a number of comments and suggestion boxes placed around the Hospice
building and we continue to gather patient,and family feedback in a more structured way through
questionnaires. We continue to use our online feedback.portal iWantGreatCare to collect patient feedback,
with targeted mailshots to certain service users,

Our Patient Forum unfortunately remained on hold throughout 2021/22 due to staff capacity and saocial
distancing; however, we will be pleased to see this restart early in 2022/23.

When received, feedback is reviewed at the Hospice's regular clinical leads meeting and Quality & Safety
Committeé. This feeds into a quality.improvement plan and helps shape our services in the future.
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ACHIEVEMEN’I’S AND’ PERFORMANCE* (contmued)

“In the must dire circumstances. we found, the supporit .of the entire team exqeptlonal warm cating and
posmve we couldn’t have asked for more. We weére rewarded with 10 months at home together despite
the p{ognos:s ‘of only.days te vae after the initial admission - tﬁank you*
Feedback on community sefvice.from: bereaved refative

t feel | must thank you and our team for admitting yestérday my déar brother in law into your-inpatiént
unit, which has-saved the'day after a sfrugg[e at home, complicated by my srsters advancéed démentia
and | her frawng to-be admifted to a nursu;g horme: My niecés report such amazmg care already recéived
from the clinical team.,... ..f.muyst admit | did bursf into téars jUst now reading my nigce’s text from her dad's

‘bedside déseribing your exceflent care for her dad™
Thankyou letter, Inpatient Unit’

(She) qnly stayed 4 days In your hospice. Having herself tralned and served as anurse'in the NHS for41
years. Whén (she) said to.every famlly member her sin¢ere satisfaction about the Wonderﬂ)l care and

attention she received fron afl your staff, that was a first”
Thank you Iétt’ér,‘lnpatie‘nf Unit

' don't even know where-to begin in saying how massively thankful we are for the care arnid Iové you
gave. You were so incredjbly kind-to. both him and our family and you made a sad and hard srtt/az‘/on
fruch easier for all of tis ahd most lmportanﬂy you made (him). comfortable and put-a smile on his face
every time you waiked: through the door.’

Feedback on Hosp:ce@){ome service from bereaved relative

1 would like o thank you for all the: help my husband and | have fecéived from the hospice 4t this very:
difficult time. Thanks to (¢ommunity nurse) for helping himrcome to terms with his cancer and accepling

- his cond/t/on To (fhe rnpat/ent drs and nurses) who looked after hir and lastly (bereavement coordinator)
for helping me cope throughout’

Feedback from bereaved rélative on Inpatient Unit, Community Service and Counselling Support

UPPQRTi.NG'THE: HOSPICE TO PROVIDE CARE

'-Volunteers

The Hospice coritinues to benefit from the support of a large number and diverse rangé of voluntéers.
Valunteers not only bring their time ahd- expertise but also their personalities and life expenences helplng
to'create the special atmosphére that exists within the- Oharlty

Volunteers work in all areas of the Hospice; these include trustees, recéptionists, gardeners, clothes sorters
in'retall distribution, IT volunteers, compassionate nelghbours and votunteer fundraisers to meéntion a few,
In 2021/22 528 people were act;ve as. volunteers, collectively giving over 83,000 hours of their time and
skills:

In fotal this: equatés to over 50 full.time workers for & year, or a financidl dopation. equivalent to
approxumatety £917,500. Compated to 2020/21 this. represents an increase in volupteer hours as we
[eopenea our s“hops and safely opened our building batk up to Volunteers. We were excited to welcome*
volunteers back across' all. of our services, as ‘they . afe a'key: part Of the fabnc of the orgamsatnon

representatwe of‘our whole community and embedding the ethos; and vajues of chamy i their work. We
-are mdebfed to all of eur volunteers, new and established, who stép vp to take oh new roles and established
positions to’ 'stipport our staff feam-and qur patierits.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

The skills and expertise that volunteers add to every aspect of our work is one of the aspects that makes
Hospice care so special. We are proud and greatly encouraged to have such a wide range of volunteers
from teenagers to people in their late 80s offering their time to the Hospice. We have identified volunteering
as a priority in our new strategy which will focus on recruitment of new volunteers, development of new
roles and training and support for new and existing volunteers as well as those staff who manage
volunteers. We also hope that we can encourage people to volunteer for the hospice as a way to widen
participation in the community, in health and care generally and to improve their wellbeing and life and
career chances in future. OQur Young Ward Volunteers Programme is one such example of this, over the
first two cohorts we have had 25 volunteers from a range of backgrounds, many of whom who have gone
on to use their learning to support their studies/ work in healthcare.
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Case Study:

Nineteen year old student Sophie’s ambition was to become a nurse and she was studying Health and
Souial Work Level 2 when she applied to join our Young Ward Volunteer Programme. In September 2021,
she began her six-month volunteering placement, which consists of extensive training via weekly four-huur
shifts on our Inpatient Unit supporting our clinical team, whilst simultaneously working towards a non-
accredited Care Certificate. Sophie gained valuable healthcare experience through the programme and
enjoyed it sc much so that she has become a Healthcare Assistant and a valued member of the hospice
staff team.
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Where did they go?

Workmg at GBCH ?m ’
Workmg in Goverriment office M "
Paramedical Science Degree ZSgEY i

) }

Healthcare Degree (niot specified) ERSETEE:
Environmental Science Degree 1

Forensic Science Degree

Psychology/ SW Degree

‘Midwifery Degree

Nursing Degreé

Medicine Degree

Income Generation

~ Fundraising and Lottery

Throughout 2021/22 we continued to face many of the same challenges as the year before however, we
.are now much more comfortable with applying a flexible- approach and are more adept at learning from our
peers and proactively listening to our supporters. The team has also become expert at responding to
changing circumstances and taking a creative approach to raising much needed funds. This year, across
all areas. of fundraising, our priofity has remained a focus on excellent engagemenit with local people to
build solid foundations for future years.

Despite another challenging and uncertatn year for our organisation and recognising that local pedple also
face significant: challenges, we contmued to be overwhelmed by the support from our community. We
couldn't do what we do without those who take. part, fundraise, volunteer and donate. Your unwavermg
support through such difficult times, feels so incredibly specral Thank. you.

Fundraising income fell short of budget in 21722 by £108, 000 however it is worth noting that total income of
£1,173,000 demonstrates an 8% growth on 19/20 (pre—pandemlo) income generated. With. excellent
budgetary control and due.to a number of vacancies throughout the year, expenditure fell short of budget
by £76,000, making for 2 net contribution £32,000 short of budget.

Events Fundrarsmg struggled with continued. uncertainty around COVID-19 infections -and cautious
supporter behaviour. The team were creative and determined in their approach to try new things; we utilised
a new online platform and ran our first virtual challenge event with more than 100 people taking part, 80%
‘of whom fundraised (compared to-a general average of 30% partrcrpants faising sponsorship), Across the
evénts calendar the team focussed .on tailored communrcatlons for supporters to see smaller groups
fundraising more on average.

We were delighted to see the return of our first i in-person-event for two years, hosting the. Minj Marathen in
Royal Greenwich Park'in September, Desprte much lower leveIS‘.of registration than in prévious years;
thoughtful communications meant that 45% of néw supporters, 4 nd: 5% of: returning supporters raised
sponsorshrp to support the work of the Hosprce itwas a wénderfi morale boost for the team-and many of”
oUr ‘dedicated volunteers to teturn to in-pérson events. .and. theré. was an uplrfhng communxty spmt'
atmosphere bnngrng people backtogethgr -for stich a fir even{“ Aspecral méntion st go-te our fantastic
event sponsers, JLL 3nd -groups that volunteered enmasséto make'the: event, possuble Lewrsham &
Greenwich Police. Cadets; the 97 (Woolwrch) DetachmentArmy Cadefs and: Greehwrch GoodGyf.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

We decided to go ahead with other face-to-face events as a way to prioritise continuing engagement with
our community. We know that many of our annual events are key dates in the diary and have the potential
to help bring our community back together (with appropriate measures in pIace to keep people safe). Our
message in continuing to deliver events was very muoh ‘we're still here for you' and ‘we can't wait for you
to join us at an event whenever the time is right for you.’

We opened a new Christmas Grotto for 2021 in Danson House, Bexley. Our first year was a success and
we hope we will be able to develop and grow this fundraiser over the next few years, engaging with local
families to generate significant income for Hospice care.

In 2021 we live streamed our Annuat Carol Concert from Greenwich, bringing this much-loved festive
fundraiser to even more people, in the comfort of their own home. This very special event was also an’
opportunity for us to invite and thank some of our most dedicated supporters. We would like to extend our
thanks to the Old Royal Naval College for generously discounting venue fees to maximise the income we
raised.

tn Community Fundraising, we supported the return of a much-loved community-own fundraising event, our
in-person ‘Open Gardens Festival with more than 30 gardens featured; we raised more than £20,000. We
would fike to thank Penny Matheson and her family, as well as all the garden hosts for their support in
running and hosting the festival.

Local people demonstrated their unwavering support once again through individual giving; with a new
Individual Giving Manager now in place, we are refining processes and our offer to grow this income stream
and our weekly lottery further over the coming years.

We continued to run a door-to-door and venue canvassing campaign in partnership with LFS (Lottery
Fundraising Services) and saw the Hospice’s weekly lottery membership grow by 1,904 players. The team
returned to face-to-face activity on 12th April 2021 and the signup numbers for April and May totalled 798
compared to a budget of 140. These fundraisers are also raising awareness of the Hospice generally and
signposting local people to find out more, or support in others ways if playing our lottery is not right for them.
The Lottery contributed £163,610 towards Hospice care and lottery players also made donations back to
the Hospice totalling £17,000 in 2021/22.

Striving for the highest standards

We commissioned a database consultant to report on the quality of our data and processes, as well as an
external data protection audit. Both exercises highlighted areas for improvement and resulted in an action
plan to ensure the highest standards of practise, these have all now been made. Along with wider
conversations around our vision for Fundraising operations, this piece of work resulted in the Senior
Leadership Team championing a project to replace our Fundraising database. This is incredibly exciting
and will transform the way that we work and enable a culture of data-led decision making which is vital for
great relationship management, supporter care and income growth. ,

The.impact of vacancies

The level of vacancies in our team has affected our ability to deliver against planned activity and generate
income; at no point in the year has the team been at full strength and so there has been an added burden
for the whole team to cover.the workload of vacant posts. The recruitment landscape has changed
significantly in the last two years and remains incredibly challenging across all areas of the business;
adapting our recruitment processes has been essential to ensure we engage the best fundraising
candidates.

Itis vital to have the right people in the right roles, so despite the challenging landscape, we hayve been
sure to wait for the right peoplé. That did mean that for more than 7 months of the year we were without an
Individual Giving Manager and a Trusts Manager. For 6 months.of the-year.we were without support in our
fundamental-donation processing function, which a number of the team covered by picking up additional
responsibilities. We were also unable t6 progress our major donor/ph»lanthropy fundraising plans, as we
struggled to recruit to this new post for the whole year.
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARGH 2022 (eontintied)
‘ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

At Greenwnch & Bexley Commumty Hospice, our supporters anhd 'the fogaf community are Lincredibly
lmportant to us and we always endéavour to deiiver the hlghest possmle stafidards When fundralsmg The
‘trustees are aware 'of best’ praotxce and tfustee duties as contained i in the' Charity Commrsston publication
£C20 “Char:ty Fundraising: & Guide to-Trustee Duties”.

tn 2021/22 we conthed to make sure all our fundralsmg activities Were complla ntwlth regu|atory standards
‘as well as mctudmg 3dditidnal levels of risk managementand provisions in fine with governrerit guidance.
We contmued to: prlormse excellént supporter experience across-all areas of fundralsmg and’ contmued to
revsew our data protecbon éompliange dnd best practise:

The Hosplce is tegistered with the Fundrafsing Regulator and adherés to the code of Fundralsmg Practice;
.we receivéd no. complamts via the Regulator in 2021/22. Greenwich & Bexley Commun’ty Hospice Lottery
is registered wﬁh and regulated by ‘the Gambling Commission.

Trading..
The. government restncttons relating to the COVlD-19 pandemlc were. ln‘ted in the middle of April allowing,

our stores, to operate throughout the fest of the year without any closutes We orlgmally antICIpated three-
months: of fockdown and budgeted accordmgly hence our_ total ‘Qross, income from Retail srgmf cantly
outperformed our Budgét and raised £2,111,967 (2020/21::£704 583) Our Stores traded for 50 weeks and’
délivered +15% on2019 salés: The total net contribution from our stores was, £305 500 (2020/21 loss of
£576,308). The. pre- -pandemic contribution (2019/20) was £243 766 ,

We -appointed ‘& new Head of, Retail at the, begmnmg of the year and this has enabled us td focus on
improving our mternal procésses and sharing business knowledge across the whole tradmg team. Simifar
to fundraising; our biggest challenge remains long-term vacancles in'the team and challengés. around
recruntment of skilled staff. Despite excellent results for the year.compared to previous years, the level of
lost’ hours has had a direct impact on our proftablhty as well as staff wellbéjng and morale,

Trading:Board and stratégy

The pandemnc has accelerated changes within the retail sector across the - UK and while there aré some
clear challenges we also recognise that there is great pofentlal for modemlsatmn in our: Tradlng operatlon
(retalt sl:ores, e—commerce and other comfnerccal acttwtres) We need to be able-to caputallse oh these
opportunmes whlch means havlng the right expertnse at a strateguc and operatlonal level: As pait of the
gavernance feview, we ndentlt' ed fhat the establishment of a Trading Board to suppart the development of
‘our retail and commercna[ ac’uvntles and capitalise- onall potential opportunmes in this: uncertaln cllmate

The purpose of the Tradmg Board istobe forward lookmg and strategle and we have alfeady seen that it:
e brlngs retall related expemse and eXpertence to assist our: strateglc plannirg.
* r'sugports challenge l‘nnovaflon and devélopment in Tradlng as Well as helpnng us.to Whlle manage

BEY oo

The- Tradmg Board had its first méeting in August 2021 and in Decerber wé weloomed Barry Dow as our
f rst, Non, Executlve chector of the GBCH” Tradmg Ltd."We are aiming fo recrult other new: Dlrectors with

rele\/a‘ht expertuse in 2022/23

The Tradrng Bdard ‘had supported theDirector. -of lncome Generation: with the de\felopment of Our new
Tradmg Strategy. wtuch will be fi nallsed ln 202223 ‘TheTradmg Strategy builds 6 SR our, overarchmg strategy
-and hds. four key' pnorrtles- People Stores Ecommerce dnd Digital and. lnnovatlon and Partnerships:
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR' THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)

Retail Gift Aid

It should be noted that for accounting purposes through the Gift Aid scheme for donated goods, a proportion
of retail income, which is in effect a donation, is treated as income for the charity-and not for the trading
subsidiary. The trading subsidiary only accounts for the commission element of the sale value on donated
goods. This is reflected in the results of the trading subsidiary, GBCH Trading Ltd which is included in note
10 of these accounts.

Acknowledgment
We are incredibly grateful to all our customers, donors and volunteers who continue to support our stores

and ultimately, our patients. Thank you.

FINANCIAL REVIEW - Strategic Report

The Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out on page
36. There is a surplus reported for the year of £917,181 (2020/21 £818,730).

On the General Fund there was a surplus of £996,109 for the year before transfers (2020721 £649,140).
Legacies reported for the year were £969 279 (2020/21 £682 237) £846,348 was received in restncted'
funds throughout the year. )

We had budgeted for a deficit in 2021/22 however we weré delighted that our final declared results are
significantly befter than we had anticipated. This was largeély due to the shops being open for almost 12
months of the year and additional support from NHS England. In total for the year ended 31% March 2022,
expenditure rose by 8%.

The surplus reported for this year has provided a boost to our reserves and we have agreed a plan to invest
some of these to secure additional income sources in future years and to expand our services to reach the
increased need for our services that we continue to see (see page 26 for further information on our reserves

policy).

We agreed a modest increase in our statutory income from SE London CCG (now SE London ICS) at the
beginning of the year. We were also successful in securing additional income as part of the winter pressures
and home first initiatives. ‘The overall impact of these changes on our: statutory income was an increase of
9% (to £4,481,335). NHS income was 42% of income of the Charity in 2021/22, another 7% (£706,423)
was provided through suppott from the NHS England via | lospice UK {caving the remaining 51% which we
must raise through the generous support of individuals, businesses, charitable trusts and foundations, and
cominunity groups and organisations*,

" Several elements of service that the Hospice provides have been designated as a Commissioner
Requested Service (CRS) by SE London.Clinical GCommissioning Group. This hecessitates that the Hospice
maintains a licence with NHS tmprovement®, which brings an ‘additional level of scrutiny and fegulation for
the Charity. The Hospice is one of only a few Hospices nationally who have been designated as CRS and
we continue to work closely with NHS Improvernent to ensure that this designation works to bencfit our
beneficiaries.

Throughout 2021/22 we continued to binid on our close syslenj-wide partnerships forged during the
pandemic. Our role in the Greenwich and .Bexley silver command group 'Resplendent’ was: pivotal in
ensuring that people facing end of life were cared for iin the appropriate place and that staff in all. settings
were supported with additional training to care for people at cnd of lite.

Our involvement- helped solve problems including vaccination for staff and has led to additional resources
being made avallable through the COVID response funding and the ‘Home First’ Programmé. The local
landscape continues to change. #@nd we are keen to continuc working in. partnership to lead’ the
improvements-needed for people facing the end of life in. Greenwich & Bexley.

#1n any Gther year the statutory contribution is approximately 40% of income.
> NHS Improvement is an executive non-departimental public body of the Department of Health. it is the sector requlator for health
services in England.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - Strateglc Report (contmued)
“Where our money came from in 2021/22:

Donations : Char:tymwp
12%. . income
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Other income Y
3'% \ .
Lottgryv 7
4%

L"g“&mes' 1
B

NHS lncome
49°/o» )
Where our money was spent in 2021/22
Réinaing pur Raising Fonds
charity Shops L 6%

Running a
Lottery
3%

Hospice
Foi every pound raised 75 pence was I5Y%
spent on care '
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FINANCIAL REVIEW - Strategic Report (continued)

Reserves Policy

The Hospice holds reserves to ¢reaté financial security and allow for |nvestment in the future operational
development of the Hospice. The Trustees have recently reviewed: our reserves policy and agreed it is their
intention to retain a level of freg reserves (unrestricted funds not committed or invested in fixed assets) of
£4,883,229. This figure takes account of the following considerations:

o To fund shortfalls in income (whether statutory, retail, lottery, donations, legacies or other
fundraising activities) when it does not reach expected levels. The chanty is. dependent .on
fundraised income as well as statutory funding. The fundraised income is subject to fluctuationas
economic conditions change and statutory funding could be affected by government policy and
the financial position of NHS commissioners;

« To fund unexpected expenditure, for example, when projects overrun or unplanned events occur,

e To fund unexpected building maintenance.costs and to provide a degree of flexibility for innovation;
and

»  To fund working capital. The majority of hospice expenditure is fixed whereas both fundraised
and statufory income fluctuates in terms of cash inflowover the year.

The Hoépsées free reserves are represented in the accounts by the '‘Genéral Fund', the ‘Recovery and
Transformation Fund’ and the new ‘Building Development Fuhd'. The Board took the decision to wind down
the ‘Legacy Equalisation Fund' this year, -and to invest this into the two remaining designated funds with
the balance transferred to the General Fund . .

Recovery and Transformation Fund (RTF): The Trustees have invested.an amount of free reserves into
areas which will enable the charity to recover from the pandemic and support the implementation of our
new strategy to help deliver a sustainable future for the hospice.- In 2021/22 £42,208 was spent from the
Recovery and Transformation Fund, which has now been ‘topped up' to the value of £600,000 with further
designation of free reserves ipto this fund.

Building Development Fund

In addition to the RTF, the trustees agreed to Invest a further £300,000 into .a designated Building
Development Fund in 2021/22. This fund will be uséd to support the developmerit of the building post
pandemic; including investment in our inpatient unit, creating more Single bedrooms to enable easier
infection control and improvement ‘of our staff changmg and rest facilities to improve staff wellbeing. We-
are grateful to CRASH .Charity for facmtatmg a review of our Bostall Hill site in 2021/22, this created a
feasibility study of the options available to improve our building post pandemrc

Fixed Asset Fund: The Trustees have established a designated Fixed Assets Reserve, equivalent to the
net book value of Fixed.Asséts, in order to. make the level of free reserves more. transparent. As described
in Note 16, thé net book value of the land and bunldmgs on which the Charity's main opérations are tocated
are included in a restricted fund. The Fixéd Assets Reserve therefore represents the net book value of fixed
assets other than land and buildings on which the Charity’s-main operations are located.

At 31 March 2022, Free Reserves incréased to.£5,596,202 (2020/21 - £4,469,371). This is over.our agreéd
reserves target of £4 883,229. 4

‘Investment powers, policy and. .performance
The Investment Committee is in place 0 momtor the investments under the .powers laid down in’ the
Memorandum and Articles of Association. The primary objective of the investment pohcy is to provide
‘ fnanCtal security and stabmty for the operation of the Gfeenwich & Bexley Community Hospice. Ouf funds:
placed with Rathbones are now valuéd at. £891,566 (2020/21 - £800,312).
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE' YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (contmued)
PLANS. FOR THEFUTURE - Strategic. Report

n‘March 2022"the “Trustees approved -a new: five year strategy for ‘the ‘hospice, It outlines our’priorifies
which continle.to centre ardund dur patiénts; their families and: frrends and the. heeds that they encounter
through théir 1oumey from d?agnosrs throtigh to death and into; bereavéi'nent

Our skilled compassronate and dedicated team of staff and volunteers, whe. always strive foc the besf in all
sthat they do will bg: responsrble fofthe delrvery of this strategy. Together we will work with local people and
out.partners to understand and meet the evolving needs df our commumhes worklng together to achieve
"the-very "best outcornes for patrents

The strategy takes account oﬁthe accelerated change and adapta’non We have seen fhrough the: challenges
*of 2020 and 2021 and seeks to build on whatis ‘positive. about this charige and leave behind that'which is
negahve

“The local GreenWrch and Bexley plan: mcludes end of life.caré and bereavement as a vital element of' sérvice
in the post-COVID world additional capacrty is being maintained across the systém in 2022/23 With a-focus
on ‘home first' and vrrtual wards', The Hospice remains ideally placed to take the lead in keeprng end; of
life care at the top of the agerida.

Our Strateguo Priorities .

our pnontres aim to utrhse our fesources as efficiently and effectively as possible so that: care and support
is.available where and when needed délrvered by the most appropnaf‘.e person/ service, They also .aim'to
énsure that,we rémain sustainable, sothat we cah continue to provide care-and support long into the future.

Our purpose will sometimes require us to take risks; to be courageous in advodating for those whom are
most in need .and ‘sometimes to' prioritise: resoUrces We will need to continué to’bé-innovativé in our
approach and focussed on our priorities. This will give us the direction fo ensure that we achieve our vision
of the best quality of life possrble for people facmg death in our community. Our pr;orrtres will ensure that
we cohtinue fo fook forward to be the very best we can-be.

© 1, Listenifig to alf voices in our community, understanding their storiés and challengmg inequaliies so that
we develop support which is responsive, compassionate and ﬂexrbfe to meét differing and mdrv‘idUat needs

-2 ‘Growing and* ermpowering our -own staff, working to odr strengths alongsrde system partners and
developing others to'give the best support they can to dying people and their families

3. Makmg the most: ‘of technology to assist us in’ delivering outstanding care, mcreaslng~reach
demonstratlng unpact and maxrcmsrng incofme

‘Now that the fi ive-year. direction has been- approved, wé are developmg detailed plans: Whlch we will begin
operatronalssnng in 2022/23; these aré In the following dreas;.

& Service. Transforznatron Stxategy

.. People Plan (mcorporatmg equity, dr\/ersmy and IncIUSrd‘n and wellbemg)

. Commumty Development Strategy (i r;corporatmg voldnteermg)

«. Envirorimiental Strategy

» [Estates Plan

* Dlgrial Strategy

. Fderérsmg Strategy

s. Trading Strategy.

s Communrcatrons and Marketmg Strategy

‘Further Information regarding our five-year strategy canbe found.4t; comrﬁun’tiyh'osp?ce‘.or'g.um.

‘I ve seen a change in. perspeofIVe for the hosprce lookmg beyond servgce Spees g and cha]!engmg the!
: ystem on what's best for the patlenf *F[ex;ﬁrl:ty on, frow staff and, resolrces are used has: really been a.
‘breath of. fresh airand pushed us all as organrsat/ons
‘Smkeholder Interwew‘ Shaprng the future of Green,wrch & Bexley Communrty Hosmce = lnsrghts '
‘report Nesta 2021 B

27"



~Greenwich & Bexley
‘Community Hosplce

TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (contmued)
STRUCTURE; GOVERNANCE AND; MANAGEMENT

‘The. Hospice was a-key parfne( inour Jocal COVID response and remains alongside us as we continue io
support our care.homes-and develop 6ir local Home First schemes. Your Quality Accotint shows that
you are & learning organisation continuélly holding yourselves to account and chal/eng/ng yourselves to
find new ways to Support our fesjdents and theit famities at the most sensitive time. Through your
'engagement in the system Jocally you cha?[enge and support us alf fo do the same.’
‘Partner, NHS Bexley

Greeénwich & Bexley Community Hospice Limitéd is & company lfimited by guarantee and nothaving g share
capital is governed by its Memdrandum -and Articles of Association dated 154 September 1992 and
amended t0 meét the dévéloping needs of the Charity on 15% January 1993, 8 January 2001, 10t July
2006 and 8™ Juqé 2012, The Members' fiability Is' limited. Every Member of.fhe Company undertakes to
contributé up to £1 ta the assets of the company inthe everit of it being wound up, it i§a reglstered Chanty
with the-Charity Commlssion (No 1017406). The number af Members of the Company is limited to 50.
Présent membershlp is 18. Every person desirous 6f becoming @ Member must sign :and deliver to the
Company an application for membership.. The sale right ta membership is vested in the committee (Board
of Management — see below) who may, . Without showing cause, ‘refuse to admit any application to
membershlp

Board of Management

The business of the Charity is managed by a Board of Management (the Trustees) and its membership
comes from within the Membeérs of the Comipany. It.is an ob;ectlve to have members. on the Bdard of
‘Management whose skills, experfise and backdrounds -complémient the needs and asprrattons of the
Workings of the Hospice and its business. Current membérship of the Board of Management is.14 and
followmg a review-in 2020, the Amcles of Association determine a minimum of four and.a maximurh of 14

At each Annual General Meeting, those Trustees Who have served for a period of four years since their last
appaintment shall retire and be eligible for re‘appomtmenf via election by Mermibers, for a further four-year
term of office. New Trustees are recruited as ‘skill gaps: are identified or to suppoit succession planning
through external advert and direct approath; with a robust interview process and the appropriate pre-
volunteering checks,

‘Edch Desngnated Officer (Chaur Deputy Chair, Treasurer and Company Secretary) is elected by and from
within the Board of Management to serve a penod of up'to 4 years following which the position will become
subject to re-electuon

The Board went:out to- opefy recruitment in August 2021 and was successful jn appointing three new
Trustees. This resulted in filing @ number of identified skills gaps as well as:improving the diversity onour
Board: Any future'récruitment will continue to tak”e‘thns open.approach; targeting skills and’i increasing Board
diversity. The charity holds indefnnity insurance in respect of trustees:

Trustee induction and ongoing training '

-New Trustees dndergo an orrentanon ahd training to brief them op their fole and, the varloys aspects of the
Hospice serwce and to brief them on their legal obligations under Charity anad company jaw, the content of
the Memorandum and Artlcles of Association, the committée and decpsxoq makKing process; the busfness
plan and recent financial perfefmance ofthe Chanty We also pair néw Trustées yp wqth a'buddy’ to. support
them in settling into'their role.

Trystees atténd appropriate extérhal training events which will develop therit to better undertake thgir-fole.
In2021/22 Trustees attended the following training: )

Compliahce and Culturé = Civil Soclety

Raising the Bar fof Chanty Goveriance - Civi Society

The Chatity. trustee mduetlon “and refréshér ~NCVO!

Sategua[dmg Essenhals NCVO

Uaderstandmg 1he numibers: financial intelligénce for trustées training = NCVO
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR' ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (contmued)
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

There is an annual review and appraisal of Trustees’ individual roies within the organisation. Our Chair
participated in a 360° degree appraisal this year, factlltated by the NHS Leadersh:p Academy.

Organisation

The Board meets every alternate month; in 2021/22 there were a humber of sub- commxrtees with specific
responsibilities: Quality & Safety Commlttee Flnance Information Governance and Information Technology
Committee, Investment Committee, Remune(atlon Committee and the Recovery and Transformation
Programme Board. As a result-of the previous-governance review and the.work undertaken by the RTPB;
a Trading Board was established in '2021/22and a Workforce Committee was establushed in ‘shadow’ form
to become a full sib-committee of the board in 2022/23, the RTPB.was wound up in November 2021 in

anticipation of our new strategy.

The Board along with the senior leadership team of the company have an "Away Day to discuss future
strategic developments of the Hospice and its services. The Chief Executive manages the day-to-day
operations of the Hospice and leads its Strateglc Development. To facilitate effective operations, the Chief
Exécutive has delegated atthority, within a scheme of.delegation approved by the Trustees, for matters
including finance, employment, fundraising and Care Quality Commission registration.

Regulatory Framework

The Hospice is registered with the Care Quality Commission to enable jt to operate as a Hospice. Ellen
Tumelty, Modern Matron for Inpatient Services is the Registered Manager and Kate Heaps, is the
.Responsible Person. The Hospice maintains a schedule of compliance with the relevant Statutory
Regulations and may be inspected by the Care Quahty Commission twice annually, by announced and/or
unannounced inspection. The Hospice was inspected in the autumn of 2016 and recejved an overall ‘Good’
rating, with Outstandmg for the Responsiveness domain. The Hospice produced a “Quality Account’ for
2021/22, which is submitted to the CQC and to NHS Improvement®.

The Hospice was required to hold an NHS Improvement (Monitor) issued Provider licence from April 2018,
this requires regular reporting of financial plans, performance against these plans and assessment of

financial nsk

Related parties
The Hospice has close relationships with NHS SE London who supports the Charity's work including a

significant financial contribution. Close working felationships exist with other health and care providers
within the community in ‘particular, Lewishar & Greenwich NHS Trust, Oxleas ‘NHS Foundation Trust,
London Borough of Bexley, Royal Borough of Greenwich; Marie Curie, St Chrcstopher s Hospice and Darent

Valley Hospital NHS Trust.

The Hospice has a contractual relationship with seven other charitiés-in Bexley as a part of a consortium
OneBexley (Age UK BeXley, Béxley Carers, .SE London Crossroads Inspire Commumty Trust, Bextey
Mencap, MIND in Bexley and Bexley Voluntary Services Council); the Hospice is also represented by the
Chlef Executive on the Local Care Programme Board in Bexley.

The Hospice has two wholly owned subsidiary tradlng companies — GBCH Trading Lifited and Greenwich
& Bexley- Community Hospuce Lottery Limited. Detaifs of théir:activities are highlighted in note 10.0f these

accounts

The Hospice has a Rémuneration Committee Which reviews and sets the remuneration of the Chief
Executive and Semor Leadershlp Team (key;management personnel) based.on. appropriate market rates
and other parameters on at least an annual basis.

,6 Available via the Hospice website WM&@X
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TRUSTEES’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022 (continued)
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT (continued)

Our approach to Sustainability and the Environment

The Hospice is surrounded by large gardens and undeveloped grounids, some of which are covered by an
environmental protection order. We look forward to recruiting a paid gardener to lead our dedicated team
of volunteer gardeners in 2022/23 so that we can develop a long-term plan for our grounds, which will
create a beautiful environment for patients, families and staff and encourage biodiversity.

We continued our partnership with Veolia and the Royal Borough of Greenwich at our RePurpose unit this
year, removing tonnes of waste from the waste chain through salvage, upcycle and resale. Although we
contribute significantly to the reuse, repurpose, recycle agenda through all our shaps, we know there is
more we can do to reduce waste across our operation. We have commissioned an environmental review
from Royal Borough of Greenwich greener business team and in 2022/23 we will use this report to help
develop a more detailed environmental strategy to guide our vision to play a greater role in the increasingly
important green agenda,

We are mindful of the increasing cost of fuel and the impact it also has on the environment, we have
invested in an electric vehicle this year as well as investing in electric car charging points on site. We plan
to increase the size of the electric fleet going forwards and to reduce our carbon footprint through energy
efficiencies and other forms of green travel.

Social Responsibility

As well as the Public Benefit outlined at page 4, the hospice wants to be an orgamsatxon that maximises
any opportunities to strengthen our local area. As a local employer and business, we have the ability to
bring economic and social capital to the area and make the lives of our staff, volunteers and the
communities they live in better beyond our charitable purpose.

QOur People Plan will create opportunities for new and existing staff and volunteers to live happy, heaithy
lives and be developed and rewarded in their work, this includes widening participation so that we ensure
our whole community have equity of access to new and emerging roles and our Community Development
Strategy will not only encourage engagement with community groups that we haven't yet met, but also
explore how we encourage staff to get involved in their own communities through flexible working policies
and a volunteering promise.

Rlsk Management
The Trustees.implement a Risk Management Strategy which comprises of:
- Aregular review of the Charity's Corporate Risk Register and Risk Management Framework (RMF)
- The establishment of systems and procedures to mitigate those risks identified in the register and
RMF
- The implementation of procedtres designed to minimise any potential impact on the Charity shoild -
those risks materialise

The Trustees review the financial accounts on a monthly basis and constantly review the level of resérves
which it is felt'prudent should be held.

The top 3 risks as identified by the Finance, Information. Governance and Information Technology
Committee are outlined in the table below:

Risk _ Mitigation
1. Financial uncertainty as we | The toard and Senior Leadership Team continue to monitor income,
emerge from the COVID-19 -expenditure and cash flow closely, with. monthly review of forecast.

Pandemic and related to the We continue to- negotuate with system:partners and commissioners
War in Ukraine and the Rising | about additional resources to support our work.
Cost of Living. We have developed a new five-year strategy and éstablished an
. Investment Fund to support us to grow our income, and to implement:
digital technologies to maximise efficiency.
_We have a healthy level of reserves.
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TRUSTEES', REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3 MARCH 2022 (contmued)
STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT(contlnued)

Risk Mitigation
2.'Additional workload created | We are working with system partners to manage emstlng and plan for
by the effects of the COVID»19 future increased demand:

Pandemic and the aging We coritinue to recrutt bank staff to provide fiexibility:and have
population/ Recruitment and. |denfcf ed new ways of working to epable us to meet mcreased need,
reténtion challenges in our. We are developmg our detailed Service Transformatnon Strategy and
elinical workforce Peop[e Plan to be approved October 2022, this will set out our plans

‘| for ow we plan to meét future demand-and how we will recruit, retain
and develop our workforce,

We.are plannmg areview of salaries and terms and’ condltlons af
.emp(oyment to ensure théy remaini in line with our competitors.
-Delivery of education to external orgamsatlans and good
‘commiunication about Hespice. opportunmes

‘Deévelopment of new soles to filt gaps that are difficult fo fi ll (e.q.
traditional nursing ro es)

| Ifcreased use of digital

{. 3. Data Protection risks dueto |'We upgraded our.hardware.in 2021.

jincréased prevalence of ‘We carry out regular network penetratson tests and tiave a third party
cyberattacks. agreément with a company who mionitor our network for potential
thréats.

‘We have cybersecunty insurance in place.

All staff are traiped op an annual basrs around data-protection and
cyber security-

Staff are only able to access GBCH systemns when on site or Wlth 2
‘factor authentication.

The majority of personally identifiabfe information is securely held 6n
the cloud (Raiser's Edge and SystmOne) -

Clinicat staff use NHS mail to communicate about individual patient
care.

Contract with Data Protection people for advice and guidance
Robust incident management

ar-
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TRUSTEES’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RELATION TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Thé Trustees (who are also Directors of Greenwich & Bexley Community Hospice Limited for the purposes
of company law) are responsible for prepating the Trustees' Report and the financial statements in
‘accordance with applicable law and United Klngdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements. for each fi nancnal year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and the group and of the incoming
fesources and application of resources, including the income and expenditure, of the charitable
company/group for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:
- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply’ them consistently;
- Observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP;
- Make sound judgements and estimates that are reasonab/e and prudent;
- State whether applicable Account/ng Standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statemerits;
- Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis uriless it is appropriate to presume
that the charity will not continue in business.

The Trustees are résponsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time of the financial position of the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are.also responsible fot safeguarding the assets of
the charitable company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

In accordance with company law, as the company’s directors, we certify that:

.So far as we are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditors are unaware.
As the Dlrectors of the company we have taken all the steps that we ought to have taken in order to make
ourselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the charity’s auditors are aware of
that information. :
Auditors J

A resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting that Haysmacintyre LLP be reappointed as
auditors to the charity for the ensuing year.

By Order of the Trustees '

In Approving the Trustees” Report, the Board are also approving the Strategic Report included herein
theirfcaRgacity as\company directors.

Chanr
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fCommunlty Hosplce

lNDEPENDENT AUDIIORS‘ REPORT TO THE. MEMBERS OF GREENW!CH & BEXLEY COMMUNITY'
HOSP[CE LIMITED'

Opmron

We have audlted the: financial statements of Greenwrcr; ang’ BexJey Commumty Hospice errtied for the
year ended 31 ‘March 2022 whrch .comprise the’ Consotrdated Statement of-Financial Activities, the
,Consolrdated and Parent Charrtable Company ‘Balance Sheets, the Consotrdated Cash Flow Statemént .
and notés to the finaficial stateménts, Including a summary of srng cant accounting potrctes The financial’
‘reportmg framework-that has been. -applied. in their preparatron is -applicableflaw and United" ngdom
Aceounting” Standards, \including’ Financial Reporting iStandard. 102 The Finanéial Repotting Standard
"app/icable ifthe UK and Repub/rc of Iréland (Unrted Krngdom Generalty Accepted Accountfng Practrce)

In. our oprmon the Fnancial statements 4
> rgive a true and fair view of, the state, of the group s and of. the: parent charrtabie company s affarrs
‘as at 31'March 2022 and of the group’s and;parent charrtable company's net movement in funds
_ |nctuding the incorne and expendrture for. the yeéarthen ended;
» . have' been properly prepared in accordance with United Krngdom Generally Accepted Accountmg
Practice:-and .*
>+ have beén. prepared in. accordance with the requrrements of the Companres Act 2006

'Basrs for oplmon
We conducted our audrt in;: accordance wrth Internationial. Standards on' Audrtrng (UK) (ISAs. (UK)) and.
applicable” law: Our’ responsrbmtles ‘under thosé :standards ares further. described in the. "Auditor’s
responsrbrlmes for. the: audlt of. the ﬂnancral statements section of our. report We- are rndependent ‘of the-
hanty/group rn accordance’ with the &thical requzrements that are, reteVantnto our audit of the financiall
statements in*the 'UK, rncludrng the .FRCG's - Ethrcal Standard .and‘we Have fulfi fled “our other ethrcal'
responsrbrlltres in accordance ‘with thesé requirements. We* believe that. the audrbevrdence we' have
obtarned Is suffi crent and appropnate to provide a basis for our opinion.:

Conclusrons relatmg to going. concern
In auditing the financial statéments,'we have concludéd that the trustees’ use. of the gorng concern;: ‘basis of
. accotmtrng in the preparatron of the fi nancial statements is appropnate |

.t._

asa gomg concem fora penod of at leasttwelve rnonths fromwhen the,ﬂnanclal statements are authonsed
: for rssue

-Our responSrbllrtres and the responsrbrlrtres of the trustees with, respect 1o gorng concem are descnbed in
the retevant sectrons of this® report

‘Other. mformahon'

The trustees are responsrble for thé other’ mformatron The ottier rnformatron compnses the” mformatron
lrncluded in the Trustees Annuat ReporL Out oprmon o the fi nanc|a1 statements does not cover ‘the other
mformatron and ‘except to the. cxtcnt otherwrse explrcrtly stated in. oUr repOrt We do’ not express any form
_of assutance conclusron thereon

jn,connection’ with_our audit of the financial Statements, our- reSpOnsrbrlrty i$ to read tpe_ gther mformatlon'

and’* in domg 'so congider whetherJ the othér. rnformatron is rnater?ally fnconsistent ‘with. “the| ﬁnancral

~siatements of our knowledge obtained in the audlt or otnerwrse appears to be matena]ly misstated.” If we -
udenﬂfy "such material mconsrstencres or’ apparer;t matena[ mrsstatements we are’ requ;red {0} determine

whether theére is'a material mrsstaternen,t inthe fi nancial statements or 'a material mrsstatement of the other

?nformatron “if, .based on’ the work we have perfon'ned We conc|ude that the're is a material mrsstatement

of thi§ other Infarmafion we are requiredito report that fac.™ 7" .

- We' ha‘venothi’ng to report r‘n this re‘g‘ara
. ’Oplmons on other matters prescnbed by the Compames Act 2006
1n our oprnron, based on the WOrk hndertaken n fhe comse*of the audrt
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF GREENWICH & BEXLEY COMMUNITY
HOSPICE LIMITED (continued)

« the information given in the Trustees’ Report (which includes the strategic report and the directors’
report prepared for the purposes of company faw) for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

e the strategic report and the directors’ report included within the Trustees’ Report-have been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent charitable company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we: have not identified material misstatements in the
Trustees' Repott (which incorporates the strategic report and the directors’ report).

We have nothing to report in respect of the foliowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
require Us to report to you if, in our opinion:
« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent charitable company, or returns,
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
» the parent charitable company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are hot made; or
» we have not received ail the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 32, the trustees (who are
also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent
charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate
the group or the parent charitable company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement wheh it exists.
Misstatements can arisc from fraud or error.and.are considered material if, itdividually or in the aggregate,
théy could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compiiance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsnbihues uitlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our p:ocedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below.

Based wh our understanding of the group and the environment in which it operates, we identified that the
principal risks of non-compliance with laws and fegulations related to compliance with regulatory
requirements of the Care Quality Commission, Charity Commission; employment law and health and safety
regulations, and we considered the extent to which non-compliance might'have a material-effect on the
financial statements. We also considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the
preparation of the financlal statements such the Companies AGE 20006, the Charities Act 2011, the Statement
of Recommended Practice for Charities (SORP 2015) (Seécond Edition, effective ' January 2019), payroil
taxes and VAT,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE.MEMBERS OF GREENWICH & BEXLEY COMMUNITY
HOSPICE LIMITED (continued)

We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of: the financial
statements (incluging the risk of override of controls), and determined that the principal risks 'were related

to recognition of "income -and management bias in certain acqountmg estimatés: Audit procedures
performed by the engagenent team inéluded:

- Inspecting frustees! meeting minutes;

- lnspectmg correspondence Twith regulators and'taxauthorities;

~  Discussioris with manhagement including ‘Ganslideration of kriown .or suspected instances of“non-
comphance with laws and regulation-and fraud;

: Eva{uatmg management's controls: designed to prevent and detect irregularities;

- Identifying and testing journals, in particular journal entries posted at the year-erid or with tinusual

* descriptions; and.

~ Chatlengmg assumptions and Judgements made by management in their critical ‘accounting

estimates.

Because of the inherent limitations 'of an audit, there is'a Tisk that we will niot detect all irregularities, including
those leading toa material misstatemént in the fi nancial statements or non-comphance with. regulataon This
fisk increases thé more that compliance: with a law or ‘régulation is remOVed from the events and
transactions reflected ir the financial statemients, as we.will be less. llkely to-become aware of instances of
non-compliance.. The risk is also greatér. regard ing. irregularities occurring duetto fraud rather than error,
as fraud invoives intentiohal coricealment, forgery; collusion, omission or misrepresentation.

A further description of our r’esponéibiliﬁes} for.the audit of the financial statemeénts is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at. www.frc.org.uk/guditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable companys members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Compames Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might staté to the
charitable company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we de not-accept or assume responSIbfllty to
-anyone other than the charltable company and the charxtable company’s members as a body, for our audn
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

S

Siobhan Holmes (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Haysmacintyre LLP
Statutory Auditors

10 Queen Street

London

EC4R 1AG

Date: 4 November 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

(Incorporating INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT)

INCOME FROM:
Donations and Legacies:
Voluntary Income
General donations
Charity shop donations
Legacies

Charitable activitjes:
Operating a Hospice
Other trading activities:
Charity shop income
Lottery income

Other sales income
Rental income
Investment:

Other income:

Total income

EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds:

Fundraising and marketing
costs

Charity shop expenditure
Lottery expenditure
Charitable activities:
Operating a Hospice
Clinical expenses

Total Expenditure

Net (losses)/gains on
investments

Net income/(expenditure)
Transfers between funds
Net movement in funds
BALANCE BROUGHT
FORWARD at 1/4/21

BALANCE CARRIED
FORWARD at 31/3/22

Notes

4a

4b

10

16

Unrestricted Funds

General
£

954,565
229,602
969,279

4,481,335

1,882,365
417,442
38,482
10,311
21,923
726,493

9,731,797

629,424

1,587,580
255,591

6,330,157

8,802,752

67,064

996,109

922,391

1,918,500

2,777,702

4,696,202

Restricted
Designated Funds . 2022
£ £ £
- 139,925 1,094,490
- - 229,602
- - 968,279
- - 4,481335
- - 1,882,365
- - 417,442
- - 38,482
- - 10,311
- - 21,923
- 706,423 1,432,916
- 846,348 10,578,145
- - 629424
- - 1,587,580
- - 255,591
- 925266 7,255,423
- 925,266 9,728,018
- - 67,064
- (78,918) 917,191
{843,206) (79,185) -
{843,206) (158,103) 917.191
1,966,349 6,269,308 11.013.359
1,123,143 6,111,205 11,030,650

2021

1,562,094
42,093
682,327

4,121,839

662,490
282,685
57,926
9,410
20,222
2,268,013

9,709,099

591,095

1,642,466
215,212

6,630,776

8,979,549

89,180

818,730

818,730

10,194,629

11,013,350

All recognised gains and losses are included in the consolidated statement of financial activities.
All transactions are derived from continuing activities.

The accompanying notes form part of these financia! statements.

Full comparative figures for the year ended 31 March 2022 are shown in note 21,
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CONSOLIDATED AND CHAR]TY BALANCE SHEETS : COMPANY NUMBER 2747475

.As at:31.March 2022
The. Group

‘The" (}fxamy
2022’ : '

2022 Cd 2021"

_fFlXED ASSETS
Tangible: asséts:
lnves?ments

:CURRENT ASSETS
Stacks . .
Debtors

“Cash on déposut, -at bank and i

hand

CURRENT LIABIUTlES

CREDWORS ‘Ariounts faling

xdue wnhfn one year
NET CURRENT ASSETS'

NET ASSETS.

FUNDS

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS
General Fund.
Desgnafed Fands

‘Fixed' Assets: Fund
“‘Legacy'Fund

RTP ‘Fund h

‘Buuldlng Development Fund.

RESTRICIEDvFUNﬂsr

Preperfy Fund
@thers

Thefi nagc;ajhstatements were approved ‘and authgrlsed o |ssue by‘the Board of,Dlrectors on 'L, e ,y c (, 7 ée_f
12022'20d were. signed below on rfs beharf by T

Notes

£

6,089,764

O 80,

891566 ;

2021
o

811,342

6,961,330

.

e

14,

12 12,708, 338 ¢

- 4, 825 ‘528

‘5457 .

1,736,456
.3 063 749:

7,533,866

(2:584,545)

(814,130)

4949220

550168

14,930,550

4,696,202

600,600
300,000

5 866 621 :

244 584

11013359

2777702

274; 680
1484, 669
500,000;

16 130 fso

The atcomipanying riotes forrvpart of fhese financial statefents.

E

;6,,089?764“’
892,568

£

6,210,485 «

5982032

7,022;628

'3;160,586 -

'4 338, 029

,2 257 589
2,911, 964

7,498,675

(2:334;770}

5,169,555

(657.296)

4,512,257

5,164,445

;11,535,086

4,912,429

228,143
600 000
,300 000¢

5,866,621
244,584

3209429

2?4 680
1,191,669
500 000

5,935,805
333,503

IR

8777 11595088

‘David Atterbusy Thomas - Dirétor

Thé net Incoris for the ehiarityorily for ihe year Is/£611:691 (2020/21:£1:340.457).
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GONSQLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
- FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES |
'CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVIT!ES

Interest recéived

Payments to acqucre fixed assets

Disposal'of fixed assets

Purchase of investments.

CASH PROVIDED /(USED iN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES.

INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH.IN THE YEAR

Cash and-cash équ}vaig‘nts atthe bégin,_riin_g of the year

TOTAL CASH AND CASH' EQUIVALENTS ATTHE ENDOF THE

YEAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

‘A, 'RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOMETO NET
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

‘Net incopne (as per the Statémént of Financial Activities)

Depreciation charge

"Profit on dispgsal of fixed assets:
Gainson lnvestments
‘Decrease in stock .
.(lncrease)/decrease in debtors
(ncrease in creditors:
Iiterestreceived

Net cash used in Gperating astivities

' B. .{ANAuﬂEsfs-QF NET a’Eé,T

«««««
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2022 3027
Notes £ £
A 1,842,590 1,762,349
1,166 2,240
(81.977) (143, 963)

: 9,750

- (11,030)
{761,779 1,616,346
4,761,779, 1,619,346
3:063,749 1,444,403
4825528 3,063,749
2622 2021

£ £

917491 818,730
202,698 194,640
~{9,750)

(80, 223) (100,460)
5457 . 3,989
(971,882) 712,743
1,770,615 144,697
¢1,166) 2, 240)
1,842,590 1,762,349




Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice

NOTES YO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS'
1. 'ACCOUNTING POLiG[ES

“The principal accounting poltcles adopted, judgemems ang key sources of estimation unceftainty in
the preparatloh of the financial statements are as. follows:

Statement of compliance .

The “financial statements havé been preparéd fn accordance With Accourting and’ Réporting. by
Charities: S{atement of Recommended Practice apphcabfe to cHarities preparing their .accounts in
accordance with the: Financial Reporting Staridard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS
102) (éffective 1 January 2015) - the Statement of Recommended Pragfice for Charities (SORP 2018)
{Second Edition, effective 1 January 2021) the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the (JK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) ahd the Compariies Act2008,

Greenwmh & Béxley Commurity Hospice Limited meets. the définition of a public benéfit entity undér
FRS 102. Assets and fiabilities are initially recogmsed at historical cost or fransaction value unless
,o’therWI'se stated in the relevant, accantlng policy note(s).

General mformatuon

The charity is a private-company limited by guarantee, incorporated-in England and Wales (company
number: 2747475) and-a chdrity registered 'in England .and Wales (chanfy number; 1017406) the
charity’s registeted officeis shown in the refefence and administration sectlon The charity is'set up'as.

2 company limited by.guarantee.
'. Preparation of accounts on a going concern basis

'Impact.of economic factors on our busingss ;

The COVID-19'worldwide pandemic has generated an economic tsunami, demonstrating the inherent’
volatility to révenue income, toupled wsth the confhct in Ukraine and the rising cost of living, we
coptinue to operate in incredibly. uncertain times. We were pleased to see the lifting of manylockdown
measures in Apri{ 2021, but our commumty rematns understandably cautlous and as a result, it is

Followlng the Tnstigation of our business continuity plan the previous year, many changes retaihed
in place for srgnif icant ‘parts of the year. Most notably, we continued to rely on more remote video
and telephone consultation, although we were glad ta bﬁng outpatients back into the bullding and
gradually relax some of our visiting arrangements forour rnpatuent unit. We have contmued to see an
incréased need for ¢are in the commu’mty and the demand for lnpatlentand hospital support is also-
above pre-pandemic levels, ‘We Wélcomed moge vofunteers back into all areas of our operation; it
Was. refreshxng to see their: generosny and commitment which has.been the lifeblood of the: hOSplce

for so'long.

We designed out fundraising plaris:to be flexible and adaptable to accommodate supporter béhaviodr
and We were excitéd to.opén our shops earlier than we had budgeted for; gaining an additional three
monthsf worth of i income: )

.....

We were glad ta be able fo beriefit from an. ac!dn;onal £706,423 Hospice Emergency fundmg from
NHS England,.and were: supporfed by an additiondl £298,000 of EOVID-19 funding from the lacal

NHS.

The cost of fivisig ctisis has seen a significant i mcrease in inflation mstlgaféd by htgh -energy prices.
“The company will benefit from the varlous measures that the government s putting i place ta
support companies througb this-crlsis.,
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Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

In addition:
» We have free reserves of £5.6m and have liquid funds of £4.8m in eur bank accounts as at
the year-end
¢ We are able to liquidate the investment portfolio if necessary.

Based on the plans and measures described above, the Trustees consider there are no material
uncertainties about the Charity’s ability to continue as a going concern. The review of our financial
position, reserves levels and future plans gives Trustees confidence the charity remains a going
concern for the foreseeable future.

Consolidation

The group financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the charitable company and
its wholly owned subsidiaries, GBCH Trading Limited and Greenwich & Bexley Community Hospice
Lottery Limited. It is the group’s policy to transfer the profits of the subsidiaries to the charity under
Gift Aid. A separate Statement of Financial Activities and Income and Expenditure Account for the
charity has not been presented because the Charity has taken advantage of the exemption afforded
by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006. The surplus of the parent charity was £817,191 (2021:
£818,730). The registered office for both GBCH Trading Limited and Greenwich & Bexley Community
Hospice Limited is 185 Bostall Hill, London, SE2 0GB. Uniform accounting policies have been
applied.

Income recognition
All income, including government grants, is recognised once the charity has entitlement to income, it is
probable that income will be received and the amount of income receivable can be measured reiiably.

Donations and legacies
Donations and gifts and are included in full in the Statement of Financial Activities when there is
entittement, probability of receipt and the amount of income receivable can be measured reliably.

Gifts in kind

Gifts in kind represent assets donated for distribution or use by the Charity. Assets given for
distribution are recognised as income only when distributed. Assets given for use by the charity are
recognised when receivable. Gifts in kind are valued at the amount actually realised from the disposal
of the assets or at the price the charity would otherwise have paid for the assets.

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE)
The group received donated PPE during the year, organised by Hospice UK,

Grants

Grants (including government grants) are recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in
the year in which the charity has entitiement to the income, the amount of income receivable can be
measured reliably and there is probability of receipt.

Income from charitable activities
income from charitable activities is recognised as earned as the related services are provided.
Iincome from other trading activities is recognised as earned as the related goods are provided.

Other Income
Income received from pension recovery, salary recharges, Bexiey adult social care contract, and
NHS England are included in other income.

Investment income
Investment income is recognised on a receivable basis once the amounts can be measured reliably



GreenWlCh & Bexley
Community Hospice

NOTES TO THE, FINANC!AL STATEMENTS (commued)
ACCOUNTING EOLICIES {contmaed)

Expenduture

: Expend' ure; is Técognised.once there is-3. 1égaf o7~ const(uéhve obllgatlen 10-faKe a paymant- to. 3
U';l d :party, it s robable that settlement w;][ bé requ(red and the -amount, of the ob}:gatnoq &an be
measured reuably, Expergdcture 1s classified undér the following act;wty ﬁead;ngs

. Costs of raising funds.-comprises; ?undralsmg ang- markeﬂng chanty shop and. fottery

_ expendfture
. 'Expendlture on chantabte acflvltles comanes Hospice operatmg costs:

“Irrécoverable VAT ig charged asacost agairist: the activity for-which the expendufure was incurced.
Expendlture s af[oqated to' the ‘paiticular activity whére ‘the. cost - relates- dfrectly to- that actrvtty ,

Howeverl[tﬁe cost of averall direction and admmsstratlon of each aci viky;. compnsmg the salary and
overhead costs of thie central furiction, is apportioned based on staff time attributable to each activity,

 Allocation of costs
. Staff-costs are allocated between direct chantable expenditure and suppdrt tosts based on the time,
'spert on these activities: ‘Other costs are.allocated directly to the relevant heading.

leed assets
Depreclation is provided:to write off the cost or valuabon less' estlmated residuatvalues,, of all fixéd -
‘dssets;: except freehold land over their-expected uséful lwes Itis‘calculated at the following rates

Freehald buildlngs 1% straight finé -
Fixiure; Fittings-and equnpment 33'3% and 10%. stralght line
Motor vehicles o 25% straight line

Donated asséts are fncluded at value.of the date.récejved.

Investments ,
Investments are:a formmof basic fi nanclal instruments and are initially shown jnthe. financial statemerits
at market’value Movements I the market values of’ mvestments are’ shown as unreahsed ga;ns and”

losses in‘the Statément 6f Fi nangdial f(ctrvmesﬁ

-Stocks.
/Stoeks ¢ arevalued at thie lower.of costdnd net reglisable value, Costis based on the costof. purchiase

on,a.first if, first out basis. 'Net redlisable value is based o, esnmated seu” irig price Tess additional
Costs to completlon and dlsposal

The Trustees' have concluded ahd agreed that the: vafumg o shops. donated goods for resale on rec:e:p{: ‘
Is'impractical due to fhie: hlgh velume of low value iterns, lagk of stock systern for. recordmg these items
<and the adrministrative cost involved. Instead the: incomeis: recogmsed in'the acounis when. these

goods are. sold.

Fmanclal mstruments"
‘The Chanty ohly has fi nanclal assets and financial Tiabilities o q Kirid. that qualify: as basw ﬁ'nancual
fnstruments, Basicfi nancial instruttietits dré it aliy recogmsed attransaction \@JUg _anld subseqUenth

measured at their settiement value: with the. exceptlon -of Bank foans Whicn. are: subsequent!y
measuréd at amomsed cost using the effective, mteresf metheci
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Greenwnch & Bexley
community Hosplce

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. (Gontinued) -
1." AGCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) -

Credntors and prov:slons

.....

past eVent that \Mll probably resutt in the transfer oftunds to athlrd party and the amount due to settle
‘the. gbligation /can be measured griestimated” rellab(y Credntors and provisions are normally
reoogmsed at theif settlement afnount after. allowing for.any trade dnscounts due.

Debtors
Tiade .and other debtdrs are- recognised at the settiement amount ‘due .after any trade. discolint
‘ offerecf Prepayments are valued at the amount ‘prepaid, net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank ahd in-hand

Cash at bank: and cash in hand includes casty and short term htghly Itq‘ﬂtd investments with a shoit
maturity of three months or Jess from thie date of acdunsmon or openifig of the depostt or smlar
account

l(Dperaﬁng leases '
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Fmanclal Activitles (SOFA)
as incurred gver the term of the lease.

Funds
‘Unrestricted funds are funds that:can be used Il accordafce \mm ‘the ¢charitable objects at the:
discretion of the.trustees,

Designated funds are unsestricted funds-éarfarked by the trustees for particular purposes.

Restricted funds. comprise menies raised for, aad {heir use. réstricted to a ‘§pecific pUrpose or
dongtions subject fo donor—nmposed condttlons

'Estl“mates and judgements

Estimates and: Judgemeqts are ¢conitinudlly evaiuated and: are-based on historical experience and
other factors, fnctuding expectatlons of future events that are belleVed fo. be: reasonable under’ the
.~cucumstances AtthOUQh tnese ‘estimates aré based on, management's best knowledge of the

.....

.amount, everits or-actions, aotua "resu[ts ultmately may d»ffer from those estvmates The T;ystees
oonsrder the estnmation of Useful fife' of fixed assels to be the ares of j’udgement and estlmatton that
‘have a significariteffect on the financial: statements Further detaﬁs oh these jUdgemenfs are provnded

;above under tangtble ﬂxed assets.

‘Legacies’ are recognised. when tiie followlng conditions are: conﬂrmed

¢ thére: has been grapt’ of, probate By the end’ ot the fi nancnal-'year ’

» the executors have‘_estabhsheq that there are: sufﬁcuent funds to: pay the tegacy

* any condtttons attached fo the legacy areeither within the contiol of thé Ghalrlty 67 havé begh-mét

Employee benefuts

,,,,,

Short term beneﬁts chudmg holiday:. pay. are reeogmsed as.an- expense in the perod in wt‘gjch tt\e.
serwce |s recelved

Emplbyee teyriination benéfits , o o
Termination benefits are accounted for on an Accrugl basis and fn, ne' Wit FRS 102,

Périsidn.schemé’

Contnbutlons to the NHS and’ Stakeholider penston schemés, in xespect of éligible emp[oyees are

tcharged tothe i mcome ‘and expenditure account as‘thiey becdme: payable. The. Stakéholdér scheme
is'a defined contribufion scheme)and' the NHS : a fihal ‘salary scheme,
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. NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (eSntinisg).
* «

......

2. _DONATIONS AND LEGAC!ES.

NPV Y

“Donamons
Legacnes

3. INCOME FROMY CHARI‘I‘ABLE Acnvas
Operatmg a Hospice'z NHS income -

44, " OTHER SALES INCOME

Caterlng Income
(Training Income’

4b. ‘OTHER INCOME:

Penston Recovery - .

Medical Insurahice Cialms.

Landlord Contribition. o stiop repalrs
Kicksfart Rebates,

.Covid Testmg charges
Lease Extension” -

“Salary Recharge secondment .
Retall Hospltah’(y and Leisure Grant’
Furlough Refund’ mcludmg Tradlng
NHS' England Support
'Adult social Care Contract
Charge for provxsnon of medlcal notesr
Others ‘

.

Greenvwch & Bexlgy
"Cemmtmity Hosptce

2022' 2021
Tota!' “Total"
vEY £

4329093 4604,187-
969279 682:327

,3.2.;2;9_8\.371; ‘22865_ 4

4481835 4121 839
12022". 2021,
l£ lr£:‘

5,184 2:072
33; 298‘ 55,854

S s

— ¥ -

2022 2021
L £ L
22,5281 - .22:528

4 463; . 55,854

2 055

12, 000 -

32,562 -
21,660

30 605 29; 707

52 002 198 732
10446_. 414 537
706,423 1 386 599
539, 546 210,000
* 581 il

(4. 2380

<

R
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Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

ANALYSIS OF GROUP EXPENDITURE

5a Direct and Support costs Direct Support Total
' costs costs 2022
‘ £ £ £
Raising‘Funds o
Fundraising and marketing costs : 491,838 137,586 629,424
Charity shop expenditure - ' 1,549,753 37.827 1,587,580
Lottery expenditure ‘ 251,391 4,200 255,591

Charitable activities
Operating a Hospice

Clinical expenses 5,835,296 1,420,127 7,255,423
Expenditure ‘ 8,128,278 1,599,740 9,728,018
Direct and Support costs Direct Support Total
’ costs . costs
2021
£ £ £

Raising Funds
Fundraising and marketing costs’ 495,074 96,021 .591,095
Charity shop expenditure 1,606,183 " 36,283 1,642,466
Lottery expenditure 211,372 3,840 215,212

Charitable activities
Operating a Hospice
Clinical expenses 5,548,610 982,166 6,530,776

Expenditure 7,861,239 1,118,310 8,979,549
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ANALVSIS OF GB,OUP EXPgNDlTURE(contmued)

e

Sup*pb&rtcostg :Adtﬁlmstr tion,

: Rans'ing fﬁnds . o
‘ Fvng“ratsmg and ,marketmg‘- . .65,463:

=

33267

OTES TO THE EINANCIAL '§TA'[EMENTS (conﬂnued}

+. Finanee:
and.IT

Clinical &xfienses
Suppoitcosts Adririistration;

gt

34666

Finance
and IT-

Jexley

. ?r‘»

Total

S £

o

5,082 isr 586 -

~ s
- J4~2Q0,

243 1, 118 31OL




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
ANALYSIS OF GROUP EXPENDITURE (continued)

6. Employees

Average number of employees, excluding Directors
Full time equivalent figures

Staff costs consisted of:

Salaries

Social security costs
Other pension costs
Redundancy payments

Agency
Medical services

Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice

The Group

The Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021
Number Number Number Number

179 178 143 134
156 157 122 118

2022 2021 2022 2021

£ £ £ £

5,350,454 5,192,777 4,435,247 4,190,992
540,939 499,901 465,838 422 939
369,278 368,642 332,792 326.220
- 20,062 - 20,062
6,260,671 6,081,382 5,233,877 4,960,213
175,719 29,422 169,416 29,422
222,163 283,855 222,163 283,955
6,668,653 6,394,759 5625,456 5,273,590

The number of employees whose emoluments were £60,000 or above per annum were:

£60,000 - £69,999
£70,000 - £79,999
£80,000-£89,999
£100,000 - £109,999

2022

I G S Sy

2021

N

4
1

Of these, 8 employeés are accruing pension contributions totalling £55,796 (2021:7 employees,

accruing £44,105).

The total employee benefits of the key management personnél of the Group were £524,915
(2021: £448,572). Of this, £491,732 (2021: £416,8889) relates to the key management personnel of

the charity.

7. TRUSTEES REMUNERATION AND EXPENSES

No expenses were reimbursed to trustees in the currént year. (2021: £Nil). No Trustee received

remuneration in the current or prior year.
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Greenwnch &«Bexley»

- .

Commumty Hospice
‘NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL‘ STATEMENTS (corithedi

NET INCOME ' 2022 12021.*
k4 :£"' ‘1‘£‘_l
“The net mcome i$ $tated after charglng
Auditots’ rengneratlon (excludmg VAT)
= Foraudit. . 16, 700 41 5 500"
. % Fortax comphant SeNlCES 5,940 .3, 640
¢Lease payments. 343 297 333 750
Deprematlon' , g'0_2§§§ i 194 640‘
-9, TFANGIBLE ASSETS: . . - éui)s;dlary 1Group -
GROUP." Freeholdy Equupment Mofor* Chanty “Furniture,  ‘Total
[land&  “Fumiture & - 'Vehl(:lesw .Total ’Equlpmengg
.1$gil§liﬁg'sc Flttmgs . A v & Vehucles
TN 3 ) £4 Y S tE - £
: Costor,vahla‘uon . NPT R N
At April: 2021 : 6,91 8,444 2 116 082 69,6501 9 104 176" 127,801 9, 231,977
'Addltlons . _ 2 . )69627 S 350 ' 81, 977 L ‘81 Q77T
Dlsposals = = '(40 886) r(40 886) (1’;2-7',80?) (168 68?)
At 31 March 2022 6918444 2, 176 708 5014 | ‘9,145267. T % 8145267
- B¢ 38 . [N N N ‘ - ‘e
Depreciatuon o o T , ‘1 .
At 1 Apnl 2021, 982,639 1,849,320 61 732 .2,893,691' 127,801 3 021 49‘2
Provided for the yeat *69,184- 123138° 10,376'| 2026987 . . - 202,698
Disposais * T < (40, gsa), : (40 886) (127,801)" (168, 687)
‘At 31.March 2022 1,051,823  1,972/458 31222 | 3,085,503 17 5,055,503:
‘NetBodk Valire' R A
At 31.March 2022, 5,866,621.- 204,251  18,892'| 46,089,764 | < 6,089,764
/At 31, March 2021 5935805 1266762, T' i" 6210485 = 6210485,




‘NOTES TO.THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cStinued)
10. ‘FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS

ichahty.n

Shares in SUbSldlafy cempames at cost
Listed {nvestments-

At 31 March 2022

Greenvvlch & Iexley
Commumty Hosplce

The historical cost gf'listég_j' investments at 31 Mareh 2022 was £750,000 (2021 £750,000),

At April 2021,

Additions

Disposals

‘Gain/ {loss) on investment
‘ In\Iestment Income -
lnvestment Fees

"At31 March 2022

Investinent in subsidiary undertakings

Cost .
GBCH Trading Limited
Greenwich & Bexley: Commumty Hespice Lottery Ltd

At 31 March 2022

2022 2021
A %
1,002 1,002

891,566, 611,342

892,568 812,344
2022 '262i
£
811342 699 §52"
S | 030
66,871 100,460
20,952 17,983
(7599)  (6.703)
891,666 811,342

2022 2021
£ £
1006 1,000,

12 2
1.002: 1,002 -

‘The chatitable- company owns 100% 6t ‘the share - capftal of GBCH" Tradmg Liritéd being 1 ,000.
Ordi inary ‘Shares of ;£1 each -and 100% -of the share cap:ta of ‘Greenwich & Bexley Commumty

Hosplce Lottery Limitéd, bemg 2 Ordmary Shares of £1 éach,

The subsidiaries are registered tn the: Unﬁed ngdom‘ The prmc:pal acbwty of GBCH Tra&nng Limited
(cornpany reglstrahon number 5612068) isthe: operatlon of charlty'shops The: prmcypal activity.of
Gréenwich & Bexley Commumty Hosmce Lottery Lig (company registrafiof number; 06483768) isto
generate funds for the parént company through the. operahon of é’lottery‘.Where applicable, the total

‘net {3xable: prof {s aré drstnbuted o the Charity. by glft aid;

Adummary of the results of the subSidiariés' are Showr: on thé pext page.
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fGreenchh & Bexl,e.y;

. ) : 'Communlty Hosplce'
"NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continaéd)!

10. FIXED'ASSETINVESTIMENTS (Edntiniied). , o
Fa . . « 5 & » ad . .‘2022 H‘sz"
£ £
: GBCH Trading leltéd
Turnover” /882,365 . 662,490
Costof sales ( 11 604) : (6,239)
‘Gross profit 1,870,761 656,251
.Admlmstratn/e expenses 1 .575.9177) 1 C1"6;3.6;2g7)”
"10pératirig (loss)/prof t. 294 784 (979:976)
{Other income ~1e 716- 390,183
e 305,500, (589813,
- Corporation Tax I 743,505
Profit/(Loss) for the.year- 305,500  (576,308)
"Pirofit/(Los$) biought forward \(5217727)  154,581°
\Profit)(Loss) carried forward (216227)  (521,727)
The assets and lidbilities 5f the subsididry wéré: o
Fixed assets. oL
Currént assets 583,422 257 214
Current: llabilitiés (798,649) (777 941) -

Total net assets %{2‘1'5_','22'?:) , (5‘20,727)

-Aggregate-share capital and reserves

(215,207, (620.727)

Thé net (liabilities)/assets of ttie subsidiary-as-at 31 March 2022 were £ (215,227) (2020/21: £(530,727),

‘Greenwich & Bexiéy. Cornriiinity. Hospicé Lottery Limited -

2022 72021
.. £ £
Tdenover 417’442 -282 685
."Gost'of sales - (71 9%2) (67 600)
Gross profit _ 345;530. 215,085

' Administrative expenses. (1§3,§,79L ;’("1_47;?}1‘2_‘);

‘Opérdting prot Agidst  s7AT3

161,851 - ‘67473

[_5 strlbutxon to: pareng cnar‘ty : (1 61 .8_5~1)§ (67 473)
f;!eta[ned i subsnd;ary A s 7 :j

-



Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10.

11.

12.

13.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

The current assets and liabilities of the subsidiary were:

Current assets
Current liabilities

Total net assets

Aggregate share capital and reserves

The net assets. of the subsidiary as at 31 March 2022 were £2 (2021: £2).

STOCKS

Materials -

DEBTORS

Trade debtors

Prepayments

Legacies

Other accrued income

NHS England grant

Other debtors

Amounts due from subsidiaries

CREDITORS: amounts falling due within
one year

Trade creditors

Other taxes and social security
Accruals

Other Creditors

Deferred income (note 15).

223,148 112,853
{223,146) (112,821)
2 2
2 2
) The Group The Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
- 5,457 - -
The Group The Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
689,226 96,284 686,351 86,443
349,053 225,536 71,693 58,482
878,116 923,559 878,116 923,559
54,811 58,311 39,000 42,500
644,089 318,120 644,089 318,120
93,043 114,646 70,060 94,527
. - - 771,277 733,958
2,708,338 1,736,456 3,160,586 2,257,589
The Group The Charity
2022 2021 2022 2021
£ £ £ £
489,798 239,858 446,571 222,122
132,693 127,599 132,094 127,599
804,218 316,381 630,113 205,984
897,087 . 49,900 897,087 49,886.
260,850 80,392 228,305 51,705
2,584,646 814,130 2,334,170 657,296

50




“NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continiied);

4.

5.

Deferred JIhcome at 1 Apnl
‘Applied during the year,
Released during: the year.

Dé_afef[éd,ipcbfme .31 March

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (2022),

Unrestncted Funds
fGeneral Fund

'Des:gnated

Fixed Assets Fund

.Legacy Eduahsatnon Fund.
Recovery & Transformatson

Fund

Bmldmg Develgpment. Fund

'Rest:[cted thds

'Donatlons

Property. Fund.

.Group Total,

TANALYSIS QF DEFERRED INCOME

“Greenwroh & Bexley |
Communlty Hospice.

. Group; ‘Charity’
2022 .- 2021 2022 2021,
£ £ £ Vg
86 302 74,342 51,705 51,705
211 546; 28 687 479,000’ =
'(31,088) (22,537) (2:400) -
ogo .  BGawr 28305, '8if08
. At
At/ Income: Expendlture Transfers 313122
. . . &Gams )
£ £ £ £ £
2777702 973ire7  (8:802,753). 989455 46961202
:274,680° 2 - . (51.537) 223,143
1,191,669" : C .= (1191869) -
500,000 - (42:208) 142,208 600,000
- < - 300,000 . 300,000
333503, 846,348,  (925266) (10,001) 244,584
5,935,805 ' - = '(69,184) 5:866,621
11013369 40578445  (9776226) 109272 11,930,550
A1



Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

STATEMENT OF FUNDS (2021)

At
At 1/4/20 Income Expenditure Transfers 31/3/21

- £ £ £ £ £
Unrestricted Funds ‘ , .
General Fund 2,049,220 8,003,163 (7,443,203) 168,522 2,777,702
Designated:
Fixed Assets Fund . 260,048 - - 14,632 274,680
Legacy Equalisation Fund 1,691,669 = - (600,000) 1,191,669
Recovery & Transformation - 500,000 500,000
Fund
Restricted Funds :
Donations 193,501 1,705,936 (1,536,346) (29,588) 333,503
Property Fund 6,000,191 1,705,936 - (64,386) 5,935,805
Group Total 10,194,629 9,709,099 (8,979,549) - 89,180 11,013,359

The Trustees have designated funds out of the unrestricted funds for specific purposes as
follows:-

Fixed Assets Fund

In order to fulfil its charitable objectives the Charity needs its fixed assets. These assets, although
unrestricted, cannot be realised without undermining the Charity’s work and the Trustees therefore
feel that it is appropriate to reflect the investment in fixed assets by means of a designated fund.

Legacy Equalisation Fund

In 2016/17 the Trustees created a Legacy Equalisation Fund taking advantage of the record legacy
income in that year. The fund was established to be used to moderate the fluctuating nature of legacy
income by allocating any annual excess of legacy income received over the ten year average legacy
income to the Equalisation Fund and to release funds back to the General Fund in years where the
legacy income falls-below the ten year average. Due to above average income in 2021/20, £735 291
was transferred to the Legacy Equalisation Fund from the general fund. The Board took the decision
to wind down the ‘Legacy Equalisation Fund' this year, and to invest this into the two remaining
designated funds with the balance transferred to the General Fund .

Recovery and Transformation Fund

This fund has been set up to irivest in a number of projects to support the Recovery & Transformation
Programme. The Hospice Recovery and Transformation Programme was approved by the Board of
Trustees at the end of 2021. The purpose of the programme is to'help us recover from the effects of
the pandemic and to support transformation in seven priority areas, identified and crystallised by the
COVID-19 experience:

Service Transformation

Refreshing Volunteering

Staff Wellbeing and Dévelopment
Equality, Diversity and Inclusion
Retail and Commercial Development
Fundraising Development
Stakeholder Engagement

® o @' ® ° @

Building Developmerit Fund

ThlS fund wilt be used to support the developmeiit of the building post pandemlc mcludlng investment

in our inpatient unit, éreating more single ‘bedrooms to enable easiér infection control and
improvement of our staff thanging and rest facilities to improve staff wellbeing. We-are grateful to
CRASH Charity for facilitating a review of our Bostall Hill site in 2021/22. This created a feasibifity
study of the dptions available to improve our building post pandemac
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lNOTES TQ THE FlNANClAL STATEMENTS (contmued)

Ve i e e

DOnatrons Fund '

This’ represents funds recelved where the donor has declared where the glft should be spent Ddr;ng, :

the year £228 843 was released mto general reserves s ,

Property -éund

The predecessor orgamsatuon t0s the Hosplce, an 1.rr\|ncarpt:>ratedx chanty transferred the Iand and
rbUlIdmgs on Whlch the Hosplce s mam operahons are located 10 the Hosploe on, restnctNe terms: for."
‘the sum of £1 The transfer documentatron predates the SORP and Chantles Act but legal opmlon

clarrﬁed restnctlve terms that; the property,ls held omtrust by,Greenwrch & Bexley Communltyt"

sHosplce Lgmrted on behalf of. th predecessor orgamsatlon However the' Charlty has the legal rrght*
tto reglster charges agamst the property and it could be mdemmﬁed out of. the premlses in respect of

ilabllrtres properly mcurred in the Chanty‘s role of Trustee

:Accordrngly, the net book value of the land and bulldungs together wnth all lmprovements made to
date on the premuses are reported as a separate restrrcted fund 3

Transfers bétheen funds refiecis he capital buiding project and movementin fixed assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Greenwich & Bexley
Community Hospice

16. ANALYSIS OF GROUP NET ASSETS
BETWEEN FUNDS AS AT 31/3/22
General Designated Restricted Subsidiary
Fund Fund Funds Reserves Total
£ £ £ £ £

Fixed assets - 223,143 5,866,621 - 6,089,764
Investments 891,566 - - - 891,566
Current assets 5,582,712 900,000 244,584 806,570 7,533,866
Cutrent liabilities (1,561,849) - - (1,022,797) (2,584,646)

4,912,429 1,123,143 - 6,111,205 (216,227) 11,930,550
ANALYSIS OF GROUP NET ASSETS
BETWEEN FUNDS AS AT 31/3/21 .

General Designated Restricted Subsidiary
Fund Fund Funds Reserves Total
£ £ £ £ £
Fixed assets . 274,680 5,935,805 - 6,210,485
Investments 811,342 - - - 811,342
Current assets 2,410,423 1,691,669 333,503 370,067 4,805,662
. Current liabilities 77,664 - - (891,794) (814,130)
3,299,429 1,'966,349 6,269,308 (521,727) 11,013,359

17. PENSIONS

The company contributes to the NHS and Stakeholder pension schemes in respect of eligible
employees. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the company in
independently administered funds. The pension cost represents contributions payable by the
company to the pension scheme funds. The NHS scheme is a multi-employer deferred benefits
scheme which is underwritten by the Treasury. The Charity's obligations are limited to its annual
contributions. The scheme currently has an employee contribution of between 5% and 13.5% and
an employer contribution of 14.3%. The Stakeholder Scheme has an employee contribution decided
by the employee and the employer contribution is 1% above the employee's contributions up to a
maximum of 7%. The total employers pensions contribution for the year amounted to £332,792
(2021: £326,220) and as at the balance sheet date the company held total contributions of £53,207
(2021: £49,841) that were payable to the pension schemes. The charity does not have any further
commitments under these pension schemes.
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48. OPERATING! 'LEASE.

- COMMITMENTS > ~ . 2022 2021
Land & . o Land & .
Bulldmgs Othef Buildings . 10ther.
£ £ £ £

(A af 3% Maref 2022, the. charity T
had annqal lease renfal
‘commltments totallmg,

Léases ‘expifing within 1 208ge7. 6,684 193,049 4,065
year. L o -
‘Ledses expiring Withio 1:5. 511,699 8,658 490,998 8073
yedrs. : o
Leases -expifing ‘after.*5. 5,450 - 18,332 -
-yéars !
725747 15,542 1702379 42:138-
9. -CARITAL: COMMITMENTS 2022, -2021°
. AR 3 £
Athoriged - . 5000, -
— 4 ]

20: RELATED PARTY-TRANSACTIONS.
]n 2022 the. followung transactlor\s took, place between the Chanty and’its wholly owned subsydlarles.
‘GBCH Tradlng Limlted (company rufnber: 05612068) and Greenwu:l) & Bexley Comrnumty Hosplce
Lottery letted (company number 06483768);
% "Amounts: due to the parent company atthe year—end was: £771 277

k 'Thereare no other outstandmg balances’ \mth refated parfies’ as at 31 Maitch. 2022 (2021 £nil) The-
total amount of donatlons recelved trom the trustees inthe year was £9 155 (2021 £31, 113). '
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

21, COMPARATIVE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (202‘1):

Unrestricted Funds Restricted
General Designated Funds 2021
£ £ £ £
Notes
INCOME FROM: ‘
Donations and Legacies: 2
Voluntary Income
General donations 1,242,757 - 319,337 1,562,094
Charity shop donations ’ 42,093 - o 42,093
Legacies 682,327 - - 682,327
Charitable activities: 3
Operating a Hospice 4,121,839 - - 4,121,839
Other trading activities:
Charity shop income 662,490 - - 662,490
Lottery income 282,685 - - 282,685
Other sales income 43 57,926 - - 57,926
Rental income _ 9,410 : - - 9,410
Investment: _ 20,222 - - 20,222
Other income: . 4b 881,414 - 1,386,599 2,268,013
Total iIncome 8,003,163 - 1,705,936 9,708,099
EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds:
Fundraising and marketing 591,095 - - 591,095
costs '
Charity shop expenditure 1,642,466 - - 1,642,466 .
Lottery expenditure 215,212 - - 215,212
Charitable activities:
Operating a Hospice
Clinical expenses : 4,994,430 . 1,536,346 6,530,776
Total Expenditure 5 7,443,203 1,636,346 8,979,549
Net (Jlosses)/gains on 10 89,180 - : 89,180
investments '
Net income/(expenditure) 649,140 ) 169,590 818,730
Transfers between funds 16 79,342 14,632 (93,974) i
Net movement in funds . 723,482 14,632 75.616 818,730
BALANCE BROUGHT
FORWARD at 1/4/20 2,049,220 1,951,717 6,193,692 10,194,623
BALANCE CARRIED 2,011,702 1,960,049 . 6,269,308 11,013,359

FORWARD at 31/3/21
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